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Castle School Education Trust
{A Company Limited by Guarantee}

Trustees' Report
For the Year Ended 31 August 2020

The trustees present their annual report together with the financial statements and auditor's reports of the
charitable company for the period 1 September 2019 to 31 August 2020.

i

The accounts have been prepared in accordance with the accounting policies set out in note 1 to the accounts
and comply with the charitable company's Memorandum and Articles of Association, the Companies Act 2006,
the Statement of Recommended Practice 2015, “Accounting and Reporting by Charities”, and the Academies’
Accounts Direction 2019/20 issued by the ESFA.

The annual report serves the purposes of both a trustees' repert under charity law and a directors’ report under
company law.

Castle School Education Trust (CSET) operates four secondary schools and three primary schools in South
Gloucestershire. There were 5,094 students on roll across the schools in the school census on 1 October 2020.

Structure, governance and management
Constitution

CSET is a company limited by guarantee and an exempt charity. The primary governing documents of the
Trust, which is a multi-academy trust, are the memorandum and articles of association dated 11 February
2013. '

With prior consent of the Secretary of State for Education, the Articles of Association were revised and
replaced by special resolution of the Members on 13 July 2018. The frustees of CSET are also the directors of
the charitable company for the purposes of company law. The charitable company is known as Castle School
Education Trust, but also trades under the names of its schools, listed in the reference and administrative
details on page 1.

Details of the trustees of CSET who served during the year to 31 August 2020 and to the date these accounts
are approved are included in the Reference and Administrative Details on page 1.

Members' liability

Each member of the charitable company undertakes to contribute to the assets of the charitable company in
the event of it being wound up while they are a member, or within one year after they cease to be a member,
such amount as may be required, not exceeding £10, for the debts and liabilities contracted before they ceased
to be a member. '

Trustees' indemnities

CSET is part of the Department of Education’s risk protection arrangement, an alternative fo insurance where
UK government funds cover losses that arise. This scheme protects the frustees and officers and provides
cover up to £10,000,000, -
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Castle School Education Trust
(A Company Limited by Guarantee)

Trustees' Report (continued)
For the Year Ended 31 August 2020

Structure, governance and management (continued)

Method of recruitment and appointment or election of Trustees

The appointment or election of trustees is dependent upon the type of trustee.

+ Member appointed trustees are appointed by the company members up to a maximum of eight. Two parent
trustees will be elected or appointed where there are not two parent governors on each Local Governance
Committee. There was no requirement for parent trustees during the year.

* The chief executive is an ex-officio frustee.

¢ There can be up to three co-opted trustees, appointed by the Board of Trustees,

Trustees are appointed for a four year period, then may be re-appointed or re-elected subject to eligibility.
For further recruitment details please refer to Governance section page 23 'Board of Trustees'.

Policies adopted for the induction and training of Trustees

The training and induction provided for new trustees depends on their existing experience and is tailored to the
individual. Where necessary, induction will provide training on charity and educational legal and financial
matters. New trustees unfamiliar with CSET's schools will be given a tour of the schocls and the chance to
meet with staff and pupils. All trustees are provided with copies of policies, procedures, minutes, accounts,
budgets, plans and other documents that they will need to undertake their role,

Organisational structure

The CSET governance structure consists of two levels: the Trust's Board of Trustees and the individual
schools’ Local Governance Commitiees (LGC). The Trust delegates to each LGC the governance of
educational provision and effectiveness, with governors acting as a “critical friend” to the Headteacher and
Schootl Leadership Team (SLT). The governance of financial and non-educational operations resides with
trustees and is discharged by the Finance & Resources Committee.

The Board of Trustees is responsibie for setting long-term strategy and the policies that will achieve the aims
and objectives of the Trust. The trustees will also approve the budget and the annual report and accounts, and
ensure that each school's Local Governance Committee is effectively monitoring the performance of each
school. The trustees appoint a Chief Executive Officer to provide executive leadership of the Trust's activities.
The Chief Executive Officer is the line manager of each of the Headteachers.

The schools' SLTs control the schools at an executive level, implementing and reporting back on the policies
approved by the Board of Trustees or LGC. As a group, each SLT is responsible for the day to day
management of the school, authorisation of expenditure within agreed budgets and the appointment of staff,
thaugh appointment panels for posts in the SLT would normally include a Governor and the Chief Executive
Officer of the Trust. Financial commitments are controlled through the application of a scheme of delegated
authority to budget holders within the school.
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Castle School Education Trust
(A Company Limited by Guarantee)

Trustees' Report (continued)
For the Year Ended 31 August 2020

Structure, governance and management {continued)

Arrangements for setting pay and remuneration of key management personnel

The key management personnel of the Trust comprise the trustees and the executive leadership team listed in

the reference and administrative details on page 1. All Trustees give their time freely and no Trustee received
remuneration in the year.

Details of Trustees' expenses and related party transactions are disclosed in the notes to the accounts.

The pay decisions for all employees at all levels of CSET (including the Chief Executive Officer and the Trust
Leadership Team) are made in accordance with the CSET Pay Policy, which is agreed by the Board of
Trustees, The Pay Policy provides clarity on who is able make pay determinations and how teachers may
achieve pay progression (the Performance Management Policy and Procedure also provides additional clarity).
The Board of Trustees is responsible for determining the salaries of teaching staff in accordance with the
provisions of the School Teachers’ Pay and Conditions’ Document and for support staff in accordance with the
National Joint Council for Local Government Services National Agreement on Pay and Conditions (Green
Book) and the associated local provisions.

Trade union facility time

Relevant union officials

Number of employees who were relevant union officials during the year -
Full-time equivalent employee number -

Percentage of time spent on facility time
Percentage of time Number of

‘ o ' employees.
0%
1%-50%

51%-99%
100% -

Percentage of pay bill spent on facility time £000
Total cost of facility time -

Total pay bill -
Percentage of total pay bill spent on facility time “ %

Paid trade union activities

Time spent on paid trade union activities as a percentage of total paid facility time - %
hours
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Castle School Education Trust
{A Company Limited by Guarantee)

Trustees' Report (continued)
For the Year Ended 31 August 2020

Structure, governance and management (continued)

a. Related parties and other connected charities and organisations
Related parties and other connected charities and organisations

There are no sponsors of the Trust and there are no related parties which either control or 31gn|f cantly
influence its decisions and operations.

CSET controls a trading subsidiary company, Premium Partners Limited, which is not included in these
financial statements.

CSET is also part of the North Avon Teaching School Alliance (NATSA) which is a joint teacher training
enterprise with The Olympus Academy Trust.

Engagement with employees (including disabled persons)

CSET takes equalities very seriously and is opposed to all forms of discrimination. Our selection processes are
non-discriminatory and always seek to give full and fair consideration to those with disabilities for all vacancies
whilst taking into account their aptitudes and abilities. If an employee becomes disabled, then we will make
every effort to accommodate reasonable adjustments to ensure that his/her employment with CSET continues
and apprepriate training will be arranged for that employee. As far as possible, CSET ensures that the training,
career development and promotion of any disabled person are identical to that of a colleague who does not
have a disability.

There are mechanisms for employee communication, consultation and personal development, such as regular
staff briefings and appraisals. In addition, the locally recognised Trades' Unions are consulted on a regular
basis through a Joint Consultation & Negotiation Committee (JCNC). CSET pays to obtain the availability of the
South Gloucestershire Trades’ Union Representatives for a variety of purposes, including consultation, giving
local trades’ union availability for employees where they need to be accompanied as part of HR policies and
procedures. CSET tries to ensure that as far as possible employee and trades’ union views are taken into
account when decisions are made which may affect employees’ interests.
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Castle School Education Trust
(A Company Limited by Guarantee)

Trustees® Report {continued)
For the Year Ended 31 August 2020

Structure, governance and management (continued)

$172 statement

In this unusual year where schools closed in March, the Trustees, via the CEO and school leaders, have
ensured that they have been able to promote staff safety, welfare and good practice through regular Leadership
communications to staff, students and parents on actions the Trust is taking during the Covid pandemic. This
has taken the form of regular email updates, links to DfE and Government guidance and how this affects
CSET policies, working practices and educational impact.

The Trustees have been able to provide an external view on the Covid Risk Assessments and school Opening
Frameworks by making site visits to ensure compliance and understanding for stakeholders. This has had the
effect of raising staff and parental confidence that the systems in place will keep both students and staff safe.

The Trust has had due regard to the PPN (Procurement Policy Notes) issued by Government so that it has
complied with maintaining payments to suppliers, even though the original contract or supply terms were
interrupted. This has ensured that good relationships with external suppliers and stakeholders has been
maintained.

CSET also undertook the decision to refund parental contributions for school trips and visits, which would not
be able to continue due to the Covid pandemic. It was important to the Trust that parents received their refunds
promptly and in a systematic way to ensure financial compliance and continued good relationships and
communication channeis with parents during the process.

Promoting the success of the company

As the custodian of large amounts of public funding and having responsibility for over 5,000 children and young
people as well 700 members of staff the company recognises its impact upon local communities and the need
to ensure all facets of its operations continue to improve.

Trustees have a clear vision for the growth of the Castle School Education Trust in line with its objectives,

The Trust aims to advance for the public benefit education in South Gloucestershire and the surrounding area.
The Trust provides facilities for recreational and other leisure time occupation for the community at large in the
interests of social welfare and with the interest of improving the life of the said community.
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Castle School Education Trust
« {A Company Limited by Guarantee}

Trustees' Report (continued)
For the Year Ended 31 August 2020

Objectives and activities
Objects and aims

CSET's aim is to provide a quality education in a caring environment.

CSET's principal activity is to advance, for the public benefit, education in the United Kingdom by establishing,
maintaining, carrying on, managing and developing schools offering a broad and balanced curriculum; and to
promote for the benefit of the inhabitants of the local authority areas {and surrounding areas) in which any of its
schools are situated, the provision of facilities for recreation or other leisure time occupation.

The aims of the Trust during the year to 31st August 2020 are summarised below:

¢ Objective 1 — ‘Every School a Great School’
¢ Objective 2 — 'Building a Coherent and Sustainable Trust’
*  Objective 3 - 'Broadening our Impact'.

Objectives, strategies and activities

CSET's strategic objectives for the period to August 2020 were detailed in the CSET Strategy under the
following headings:

Objective 1 - 'Every School a Great School’

» 1.1 Leadership & School Improvement

1.2 Shared Curriculum

1.3 Teaching, pedagogy & teacher development

1.4 Assessment & intervention

1.5 Ethos, inclusion, safeguarding & personal development

Objective 2 —~ ‘Building a Coherent and Sustainable Trust’
» 2.1 Governance, compliance & trust leadership
2.2 People Strategy

2.3 Financial Strategy

2.4 Facilities & Capital Strategy

2.5 IT Strategy

™

Objective 3 — ‘Broadening our Impact’

¢ 3.1 Develop and grow provision at existing schools

3.2 New Lyde Green schools open in 2022

3.3 Actively explore opportunities for additional schools to join CSET
3.4 CSET Partnerships

3.5 Reputational & Communications

Key activities and targets were identified in the School Improvement Plans and were influenced by the
significant challenges and opportunities arising from national changes in education policy and funding, including
responding to the challenges brought by Covid-19, the initial school closures and the need to introduce remote
teaching.
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Castle School Education Trust
(A Company Limited by Guarantee)

Trustees' Report {continued)
For the Year Ended 31 August 2020

Objectives and activities (continued)

Public benefit

The Trustees confirm that they have complied with the duty in Section 17(5) of the Charities Act 2011 to have
due regard to the Charity Commissioner's general guidance on public benefit in exercising their powers or
duties. They have referred to this guidance when reviewing the Trust's aims and objectives and in planning its
future activities.

The Trust aims to advance for the public benefit education in South Gloucestershire and the surrounding area.

The Trust provides facilities for recreational and other leisure time occupation for the community at large in the
interests of sacial welfare and with the interest of improving the life of the said community.
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Castle School Education Trust
{A Company Limited by Guarantee)

Trustees' Report (continued)
For the Year Ended 31 August 2020

Strategic report
Achievements and performance

CSET expanded rapidly from one to seven schools in its first three years of operation. Since then the Trust has
concentrated on consolidating the financial and educational performance of the group. The schools within
CSET aim to be first choice for parents in the local communities we serve.

A broad, balanced, and inclusive curricilum is in place which is aspirational and challenging and which
provides appropriate pathways for all students as they move through their education. We develop character in
our students so that they are well rounded, have breadth of experience, are resilient in the face of challenge,
and ready to play a positive role as future citizens.

The Trust has appointed a Trust Leadership Team to provide strategic direction and increased support to its
schools. The Trust is increasingly aligning educational provision, drawing on best practice within the sector.

Operations are increasingly aligned in order to generate financial efficiencies and improve the effectiveness of
operational support to schools. The Trust is financially solvent and capable of supporting its vision and plan.
High level relationships with regional agencies are maintained which help us to navigate funding changes and
ensure we remain appropriately funded and financially sustainable. The HR and IT Teams are centralised, and
the Finance function has been reviewed and updated under the guidance of the Director of Finance and
Operations, with the appointment of two new qualified staff in a Finance Manager role to strengthen the team.
The aim has been to support the delivery of inspirational teaching and learning and protecting and extending
the life expectancy of the buildings which are shared with and valued by the community.

The Trust has secured a major capital investment program of £14.25M in conjunction with South
Gloucestershire Council that will enhance two school sites and bring long overdue investments to replace
temporary buildings, improve the condition of permanent buildings, and reconfigure school facilities to provide
a suitable learning environment for current students as well as future generations. It is anticipated that detailed
planning works will commence in 2021 with completion anticipated in 2022 at Mariwood School and 2023 at
The Castle School.

The CSET Sports Partnership continues to provide valuable support to local primary and secondary schools,
including the organisation of sporting competitions and sports provision for primary schools. This programme
has been delivered throughout the Covid-19 period via remote and virtual sessions. The CSET IT Partnership
provides traded support to local primary schools and this has also been delivered remotely and at weekends to
comply with government Covid-19 guidance. Both partnerships have grown during the course of the last year
and are operated through CSET'’s trading subsidiary, Premium Partners Limited.

We maintain strong governance which monitors and challenges all aspects of school performance. Through
annual reviews, we ensure the skill set of school governors is appropriately balanced and developed through
high quality training.

The Trustees have complied with their duty to have due regard to the guidance on public benefit issued by the
Charity Commission in exercising their powers and duties.

National examinations and assessments were cancelled in March 2020 due to the Covid-19 pandemic.
Therefore, there are no externally published accountability measures for CSET schools for the 2019/20
academic year.

The Castle School, which was the founding CSET school in March 2013, is the second largest school in South
Gloucestershire, and had 1556 students on roll in 2018-20. The school remains popular with parents, attracting
a significant number of families from outside the school’s catchment area. Overall, the progress of students at
the end of Year 11 and Year 13 was in line with the national average. The Castle School was judged “Good” by
Ofsted in January 2016.
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Castle School Education Trust
{A Company Limited by Guarantee)

Trustees' Report {continued)
For the Year Ended 31 August 2020

Strategic report (continued) S

Achievements and performance (continued) T

Charfield Primary School joined CSET as a sponsored academy in September 2013. The school improved
from “Special Measures” to “Outstanding” in its first academy inspection in July 2015. The school continues to
perform well, with attainment in the new Key Stage 2 tests above national average in all areas, and progress in
line with national averages. Qutcomes in national assessments at the end of Reception, Year 1 and Year 2 also
remain strong. Numbers at Charfield remain stable with 199 students on roll in 2019-20.

Severn Beach Primary School joined CSET as a sponsored academy in September 2014. The school has
benefitted from closer links with other local schools in the trust, and in 2019 was judged Good for the first time
in the history of the school. The school has grown in populasity since joining the trust with 134 on roll in 2018-
20. Pupil progress has improved significantly over the last three years and is now in line with nationat averages.

Mariwood School joined CSET as a sponsored academy in November 2014. Over the last decade, overall
numbers have declined significantly with 432 students on roll in 2019-20, causing further budgetary and
curriculum pressures, however numbers are now recovering with a rising number of students joining in Year 7.
Overall, the progress of students at the end of Year 11 was below the national average although there is now a
strong trend of improvement. Marlwood School was removed from Special Measures by Ofsted in December
2019, achieving ‘Good’ judgements in the majority of categories.

Lyde Green Primary School opened in September 2015 in temporary accommodation at Downend School,
and moved to a purpose built building in Lyde Green in September 2016. The school had 261 students in Years
Reception, 1, 2. 3 and 4 in 2019, with pupil numbers exceeding original projections and an additional class
taken in Reception to meet parental demand. There were 356 on roll in 2019-20. Attainment and progress are
above the national average. Lyde Green Primary School was judged Good in all categories at its first inspection
in July 2018,

Mangotstield School joined CSET in September 2015 as a sponsored academy, and had 1062 students on
roll in 2019-20. Significant changes have been made to the ethos and curriculum provision of the school.
Overall, the progress of students at the end of Year 11 was below the national average, although there is a
strong trend of improvement. Mangotsfield School was judged 'Requires Improvement’ by Ofsted in March
2018. A new Headteacher was appointed in January 2020.

Downend School joined CSET in May 2016 and had 1315 students on roll across all year groups. Overall, the

progress of students at the end of Year 11 and Year 13 is in line with the national average. Downend School
was judged "Good" by Ofsted in January 2019,
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Castle School Education Trust
(A Company Limited by Guarantee)

Trustees' Report (continued)
For the Year Ended 31 August 2020

Strategic report (continued)
Achievements and performance (continued)

Key performance indicators

The financial key performance indicators have been set by the Trustees, are the requirement that the financial
position should remain sufficient to fund future needs and resources are used effectively, with pupil numbers
representing the basis for much of the funding. Pupil numbers for 2020 were 5094, an increase of 135 over
2019. It is anticipated that this number will continue to rise.

The Trustees are reviewing, through the use of Integrated Curriculum-led Financial Planning (ICFP), the Key
Performance Indicators that would be the most effective to monitor the Trust schools. The Trust reserves target
is 5%.

All Primary schools are showing Attainment progress in line with, or above national averages. In addition,
Charfield, in key stage 2 tests, attained above national average in all areas and, Lyde Green was judged ‘Good’
by Ofsted in all categories at its first inspection.

The majority of Secondary Schocls are judged as ‘Good' by Ofsted, and show an improving trend

For further information, please refer to the section above
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Castle School Education Trust
{A Company Limited by Guarantee)

Trustees’ Report (continued)
For the Year Ended 31 August 2020

Strategic report (continued)
Achievements and performance (continued)

Going concern

The Trustees have been provided with a range of financial information during the course of the year to enable
them to make an assessment that the Trust is a going concern. Information has included discussions on short
term aspects (increases in pension and National Insurance on-costs, detailed budget planning at cost centre
level, 3-5 year forward plan, review of the financial scheme of delegation, and pay progressions), and longer
term aspects (cash flow management, contracts management reviews, reserves policy, student number
predictions and forecasts), plus the impact of Covid-19 on the organisation as a whole.

The Trustees are aware that future General Annual Grant income from the Department for Education is
guaranteed on a per pupil basis as part of the school's Funding Agreement. This provides legal certainty of the
availability of public funds for at least 7 years. The Trust is dependent on this funding in order to continue as a
going concern.

The Trustees have also ensured they are appropriately skilled, have reviewed information in relation to the
Trust's strategic priorities, updated and refined the Trust risk assessment, ensured that budget planning has
been based on a ‘needs led’ basis and have had information regarding benchmarking and ICFP metrics.

Specific planning has been done to ensure appropriate sums have been set aside to cover exceptional costs
arising from the current Pandemic and this has been included, where possible, in forward budget planning and
for the period until 31 August 2022. To note that the Trust are, like all other educational establishments, subject
to potential changes in government funding and this has been reactive to the situational need, i.e. Covid
exceptional grant funding. Therefore, these items may not be covered in future scenario planning.

Our detailed forward planning for the years AY2020-21 and AY2021-22 has taken into account projected
student numbers, which are increasing, and additicnal funding due to the implementation of the National
Funding Formula. However, it also includes for 3% teacher and 2% support staff cumulative pay increases
which may be above the levels suggested by government. This is reflected in our modelling showing a net
deterioration in free reserves of approximately £23k. ldentified risks are:

s Exceptional Covid Costs ~ costs of additional cleaning materials, PPE and janitor time (potentially an
additional £129k). However, there is the potential to re-tender this contract in June 2021 and negotiate
different and more inclusive terms, driving costs down via an extended contract term

« Staff cover costs — this is being reviewed as part of the ICFP financial models and also as part of an HR
review and strengthening of KPI monitoring. Worst case scenario is a deficit to budget of £25k for AY20-21
To note that the current government Coronavirus Workforce Fund may be able to mitigate some of the
additional supply costs.

» Student losses - funding for students is on a lagged basis so losses in student numbers will not affect the
AY20-21 grant funding which is already fixed. Funding for AY21-22 will be based on actual student
numbers in the current financial year which have been recorded in the latest census submissions already.
Initial data suggests the Trust numbers are increasing so income would rise accordingly

» Lettings — these are not material for the AY19-20, reduced income of £3.8k, and are contained in PPL Ltd

for future vears. The schools do not budget for any Deed or Gift Aid from PPL Ltd, so there is no
anticipated loss of income.
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Castle School Education Trust
(A Company Limited by Guarantee)

Trustees' Report {continued)
For the Year Ended 31 August 2020

Strategic report {continued)
Achievements and performance (continued)
Going concern {continued)

+ Catering costs — due to restrictions in the length of break times and zoning of school areas so that students
stay within Year group ‘bubbles’, the opportunity for students to access some catering has been reduced. It
is anticipated that the current model will be in place for the whole of the Academic year in 20-21. The
impact on catering is an anticipated deficit to budget of £50k.

o Overall, the worst-case scenario is an impact o budget for AY20-21 of ¢c. £75k

The Trustees, supported by the Trust Executive Team, have considered the above factors alongside the
current reserves position and consequently, the Trustees have concluded that the Trust is well placed fo
manage its business risks successfully despite the current uncertain national economic outlook. The Trustees
have assessed whether the use of going concern is appropriate i.e. whether there are any material uncertainties
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the ability of the Trust to continue as a going
concern. This assessment has been made in respect of a period of one year from the date of the approval of
the financial statements. As a result of this assessment, the Trustees have concluded that the going concern
basis of accounting in preparing these annual financia! statements is appropriate.

CSET don't believe recent school closures, due to Covid-19, will have a negative impact on the Going Concern
of the Trust. Pupils are being home-schooled via interactive lesson plans and the Government is committed to
continue with the funding of Academy Trusts. In addition, the Government has recently committed to continue
support for free school meals during these school closures.

Further details regarding the adoption of the going concern basis can be found in note 1 to the financial
statements.

Page 14




Castle School Education Trust
(A Company Limited by Guarantee)

Trustees' Report (continued)
For the Year Ended 31 August 2020

Strategic report (continued)
Achievements and performance (continued) "

Financial review

Most of the Trust's income is obtained from the DfE via the ESFA in the form of recurrent grants, based on
student numbers, the use of which is restricted to particular purposes. The grants received from the DfE during
the vear ended 31 August 2020 and the associated expenditure are shown as Restricted Funds in the
Statement of Financial Activities.

The Trust also receives grants for fixed assets from the DfE which are shown in the Statement of Financial
Activities as restricted income in the Fixed Asset Fund. The Restricted Fixed Asset Fund balance is reduced by
annual depreciation charges over the useful life of the assets concerned, as defined in the Trust's accounting
policies.

During the year ended 31 August 2020, the Trust had total income receivable of £28,746k (2019: £27,597k) and
incurred total expenditure of £30,765k (2019: £29,809k). Net expenditure for the year was £2,019k {2019:
£2,212k).

The ESFA may provide the Trust with additional grants which are earmarked for specific purposes (such as
Pupil Premium which must be used to raise the attainment of disadvantaged pupils). These appear in the
accounts as DfE/ESFA grants.

Where we receive grant or other funding from Local Authorities (such as where we undertake responsibilities on
their behalf in respect of our students) this appears in the accounts as other government grants. Such income is
collectively referred to as "Restricted Funds’. Other income is received from parents (for example as
contributions to trip or other costs) and from third parties (for example from our bank for interest on our account
balances or from others who are charged for their use of our facilities). Such other income may be restricted or
unrestricted, depending on whether it comes to us with conditions as to its use or whether it is available for
spending at the discretion of the Trustees.

We hold funds in two broad categories, funds which are available for spending and other funds which are not
available for spending.

Spendable funds are in turn sub-categorised between those which are available for spending at the discretion of
Trustees (“Unrestricted Funds™) and those which are subject to condition or restriction, (“Restricted Funds”).

At 31 August 2020 the net book value of fixed assets was £60,657k (2019: £63,387k) and movements in
tangible fixed assets are shown in note 14 to the financial statements. The assets were used exclusively for
providing education and the associated support services fo the pupils of the Trust.

The land, buildings and other assets were transferred to the Trust upon conversion. Other assets have been
included in the financial statements at a best estimate, taking into account purchase price and remaining useful
lives.

The Trust has taken on the deficit in the Local Government Pension Scheme in respect of its non-teaching staff

transferred on conversion. The deficit is incorporated within the Statement of Financial Activity with details in
Note 26 to the financial statements.
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Castle School Education Trust
(A Company Limited by Guarantee)

Trustees' Report (continued)
For the Year Ended 31 August 2020

Strategic report (continued)
Achievements and performance (continued)

Financial review (continued)

Key financial policies adopted or reviewed during the year include the Financial Responsibilites and
Procedures guide which lays out the framework for financial management, including financial responsibilities of
the Board, Headteacher, managers, budget holders and other staff, as well as delegated authority for spending.

During the year under review, there was a deficit of £769k (2019: £746k) on general restricted funds, a surplus
of £139k (2019: deficit of £62k) on unrestricted funds and after LGPS valuation adjustments, depreciation and
capital income and expenditure, an overall deficit of £1,986k (2019: £6,874k).

The Trust's net current assets balance and the cash position remains strong, with a total of £3,061k (2019:
£2,362k) in hand and at bank or on short term deposit.

The Trust's reserves are considered below, under Reserves policy.

Reserves policy

The Trustees review the reserve levels of the Trust at least annually. This review encompasses the nature of
income ang expenditure streams, the need to match income with commitments and the nature of reserves.The
aim is to ensure that adequate reserves are built up and maintained to ensure the stability of the Trust and
individual schools’ operations, to protect it so it has the ability to adjust quickly to financial circumstances, such
as large unplanned expenditure, cyclical maintenance and working capital requirements. The Trust also needs
to be regarded as a Going Concern.

The minimum target for the restricted and unrestricted reserves (excluding the pension deficit) combined
should be equal to one month’'s average payroll costs (c. £449k AY20-21) plus any significant known changes
in year. The reason for this is to provide sufficient working capital to cover delays between spending and receipt
of grant income and to provide a cushion to deal with unexpected emergencies (i.e. urgent maintenance, Covid
related items).

At the 31st August the unrestricted (not designated) reserves totalled £1,019,000 (2019 £877,000).

The defined benefit pension scheme reserve has a negative balance of £14,294, 000 (2019: £13,536,000). The
effect of the deficit position of the pension scheme is that the Trust is paying higher employers’ pension
contribution over a number of years. The higher employers' pension contribution will be met from the Trust's
budgeted annual income. Whilst the deficit will not be immediately eliminated, there should be no actual cash
flow deficit on the fund, nor any impact on the unrestricted reserves of the Trust.

In addition, the Trustees have reviewed the future plans of the Trust and have allocated from the restricted
fixed asset reserve as follows:

+ £2,500,000 towards the combined Capital plans for Marlwood and The Castle Schoots. This is SCA Capital
funding that has been specifically held back for this purpose and is part of a larger £14,250,000 project
which is co-funded by South Gloucestershire Council

» £1,104418 towards localised school Asset Management Plans which will ensure high quality learning
environments, including installation of energy efficient systems where possible, in line with the Trust
strategic plan
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Castle School Education Trust
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Trustees' Report (continued)
For the Year Ended 31 August 2020

Investment policy o

Due to the nature and timing of receipt of funding, the Trust may at times hold cash balances surplus to its
short term requirements. The Trustees have authorised the opening of additional short term bank investment
accounts to take advantage of higher interest rates. No other form of investment is authorised,

The Trust recognises the need to obtain best value from all of the assets that it holds, including any cash
balances that it may periodically hold.

The Trust manages its cash by reviewing short- and medium-term requirements for funds. The policy is to
- invest temporary surplus amounts in easy access bank deposit accounts. There are currently no long-term
investments made by the Trust. The situation will be reviewed to ensure the Trust maximises the return on its
cash reserves. The day to day management of the treasury function is contrelled by the Chief Financial Officer
{Director of Finance and Operations).

S

Principal Risks and Uncertainties

The Board of Trustees has overall responsibility for managing risk, driven by consideration of the principal risks
of significant failure. The CSET Risk Management Strategy has been informed by the ‘Academy trust risk
management’ guidance published by the ESFA.

The Trust has continued to strengthen its risk management process throughout the year by reviewing, updating
and improving the process through a regular review process overseen by the Audit and Risk Committee.

The Trust has agreed a Risk Management Strategy, a Risk Register and a Risk Management Plan. These have
been discussed by Trustees and include the financial risks to the Trust. The register and plan are regularly
reviewed in light of any new information and formally reviewed annually.

The Trustees have assessed the major risks to which the Trust is exposed, in particular those relating to its
finances, teaching, facilities and other operational areas. The Trustees have implemented a number of systems
to assess and minimise those risks, including internal controls described elsewhere. Where significant financial
risk still remains, they have ensured they have adequate insurance cover.

The identified risks and uncertainties document in the Trust risk register are as follows:

The quality of education provided by CSET schools falls below national expectations

CSET does not recruit, train and retain the high calibre staff required to achieve its objectives
Weak governance & executive leadership

Poor reputation and public perception of CSET

CSET does not grow, restricting future ability to fulfil strategic objectives

Failure to control expenditure within income levels

Pupil Numbers fall below Admission Numbers

Children are not properly safeguarded

Failure to fulfit regulatory requirements in Operations areas

Buildings at The Castle School and Mariwood School become unusable due to unresolved condition issues
Failure to secure additional school places required at Lyde Green .

Failure to secure rapid improvement at Mangotsfield School

immediate response to Covid-19 not adequately managed
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Trustees' Report (continued)
For the Year Ended 31 August 2020

Principal Risks and Uncertainties (continued)

The Trustees review performance against budgets and overall expenditure by means of regular management
accounts and update reports at the Finance and Resources Committee meetings.

At the year end, the Trust had no significant liabilities arising from trade creditors or debtors that would have a
significant effect on liquidity.

The Board of Trustees recognises that the defined benefit pension scheme deficit {Local Government Pension
Scheme}, which is set out in Note 26 to the financial statements, represents a significant potentiat liability.
However, as the Trustees consider that the Trust is able to meet its known annuai contribution commitments for
the foreseeable future, this risk from this liability is minimised.

Our fundraising practices

Under the provisions of the Charities (Protection and Social Investment) Act 2016 the Trustees can declare that
CSET does not undertake any formal fundraising activity, either directly or through professional fundraisers.
Consequently, the Trust has not voluntarily subscribed to any fundraising standards or regulation. Volunteers
from parent teacher associations or friends' groups do raise funds on behalf of Trust schools with support from
staff, but this vaiuable work is not directed or monitored by the Trust.

The Trust has not received any complaints in relation to fundraising activities and the trustees are not aware of
any incidents of unreasonably intrusive or persistent fundraising approaches or undue pressure to donate.
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Trustees’ Report {continued)
For the Year Ended 31 August 2020

Streamlined energy and carbon reporting

The Trust is reporting under this new section as we have Gross (total assets) of greater than £18m and more
than 250 employees, and consumes more than 40,000 kWh of energy in a reporting period.

The Trust's greenhouse gas emissions and energy consumption are as follows:

2020
Energy consumption used to calculate emissions (kWh) 7,478,262
Energy consumption breakdown (kWh}:
Gas 5,362,776
Electricity 2,093,465
Transport fuel 22,021
Scope 1 emissions (in tonnes of CO2 equivalent):
Gas consumption 988
Owned transport . 1
Total scope 1 98¢
Scope 2 emissions {in tonnes of CO2 equivalent): : P -
Purchased electricity 736
Scope 3 emissions (in tonnes of CO2 equivalent):
Business travel in employee-owned or rental vehicles 4000 ' 4
Total gross emissions {in tonnes of C02 equivalent): 1,728
Intensity ratio:
Tonnes of CO2 equivalent per pupil ' 0.39

The Trust has followed and used the following quantification and reporting methodologies:

. the 2019 HM Government Environmental Reporting Guidelines;
. the GHG Reporting Protocol - Corporate Standard; and
. the 2020 UK Government's Conversion Factors for Company Reporting.

intensity ratio

The chosen intensity ratio is total gross emissions in tonnes of CO2 equivalent per pupil, the recommended
ratio for the sector.

Measures taken {o improve energy efficiency

As part of the multi-million capital project earmarked for The Castle School and Marlwood School, we are
ensuring that we have taken steps to increase energy efficiency throughout these two sites.

Utilising the remaining SCA capital funds we plan to maximise energy efficiency as much as we can by an
agreed rolling programme of energy efficient modifications.
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Trustees' Report (continued)
For the Year Ended 31 August 2020

Streamlined energy and carbon reporting (continued)

As a result of Covid-19 we have reduced inter-site travel from staff, utilising video conferencing instead, and
have reviewed usage of cleaning materials and associated items to ensure that we use the most effective and
environment friendly materials open to us.

Plans for future periods

The Trust will continue striving to improve the levels of performance of its students at all levels and will
continue its efforts to ensure its students gain employment, or progress to undertake specific training or further
education once they leave. The Trust will also work to further increase recruitment into the Sixth Form and
remains open to providing additional 'buige’ classes in conjunction with South Gloucestershire Council to
support the demand for places at schools within the Trust, together with accepting appropriate transfers from
other schools where possible.

Following the notification of a successful capital funding bid for the development of The Castle School and
Martwood School, the Trust is now undertaking feasibility studies and working through various planning stages.
The Board of Trustees has made a commitment of £2.5M towards the development plans {in addition to

£14.25M funding from South Gloucestershire Council} to ensure the continued success of both schools for
future students.

funds held as custodian on behalf of others
The Trust holds £28,114 in respect of 16-19 bursary funds.
Disclosure of information to auditor

Insofar as the Trustees are aware:

. there is no relevant audit information of which the charitable company's auditor is unaware, and

. that Trustees have taken all steps that they ought to have taken to make themselves aware of any
relevant audit information and to establish that the auditor is aware of that information.

Auditor

‘The Board of Trustees are proposing, in the interest of Best Practice, our intention to re-tender the contract for
audit. BDO LLP will be invited to submit a tender response.

The Trustees’' Report, incorporating a strategic report, was approved by order of the Board of Trustees, as the
company directors, on 18th January 2021 and signed on its behalf by:

ST

Susannah Hill ’
Chair of Board of Trustees
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Governance Statement

Scope of responsibility

As trustees we acknowledge we have overall responsibility for ensuring that Castle School Education Trust has
an effective and appropriate system of control, financiai and otherwise. However such a system is designed to
manage rather than eliminate the risk of failure to achieve business objectives, and can provide only
reasonable and not absolute assurance against material misstatement or loss.

As Trustees, we have reviewed and taken account of the guidance in DIE's Govemnance Handbook and
competency framework for governance.

The trustees have delegated the day to day responsibility to the chief executive, as accounting officer, for
ensuring financial controls conform with the requirements of both propriety and good financial management and
in accordance with the requirements and responsibilities assigned to it in the funding agreement between
Castle School Education Trust and the Secretary of State for Education. The chief executive is also responsible
for reporting to the trustees any material weaknesses or breakdowns in internal control.
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Governance Statement {continued)

Governance

* The information on governance included here supplements that described in the Trustees' Report and in the
Statement of Trustees' Responsibilities. The board of Trustees has formally met 12 times during the year,

Attendance during the year at meetings of the board of Trustees was as follows:

Trustee Meetings attended Out of a possible
Susannah Hill, Chair 12 12
Simon MacSorley, Vice Chair 12 12
Rhona Allgood 12 12
William Roberts, Chief Executive and 12 12
Accounting Officer

Andrew Levitt o 11 12
Colin McDougall 8 12
Christopher White-Horne 10 12
Paul Harrcd 8 8
Rhiannon Clancy 8 12
Jayne Prior 11 12
David Moran 9 10

There are three core functions of governance:

» ensuring clarity of vision, ethos and strategic direction

+ holding executive leaders to account for the educational performance of the schools and their pupils and
the performance management of staff

» overseeing the financial performance of the school and making sure that its money is well spent - including
the pupil premium

The governance arrangements should support the Trust to provide high quality education in all its schools
Members

Members hold the Trustees to account for the governance of the Trust. The members appoint 9 of the
Trustees. CSET currently has 5 members.

Members meet formally twice a year including the Annual General Meeting. The Board submits an annual
report on the performance of the Trust to the members.

In July 2020, the meeting with the members also reviewed the quality of governance of the Trust since the start

of the school closures in March 2020 as a response to Covid-19. The members were positive in their
endorsement and agreed the lessons which had been learned through the school significant closures.
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Governance Statement (continued)

Governance (continued)

Board of Trustees

The purpose of governance is to ensure that CSET achieves its mission by:
setting the ethos, culture and vision

making decisions about policy and strategy

overseeing and scrutinising organisational performance
ensuring organisational accountability

There are currently 10 Trustees with 2 vacancies. During the year, two Trustees have resigned and one new
Trustee has been appointed. Regular skills audits and evaluations of the effectiveness of the Board determine
the skill requirements for recruiting to a Trustee vacancy. The skills audit showed a need to recruit for Trustees
with finance and HR experience which is currently underway. In addition, all Trustees must be skilled,
knowledgeable, and able to confidently support and challenge the leadership of a group of schools.

To secure continued improvement, the Trust commissioned the Ambition Institute to review the Trust at all
levels in December 2019. The review was very positive about the progress which has been made by the Trust
and gave some clear recommendations, including for governance, to help accelerate that progress. The Trust
is now implementing these recommendations and the review team will be invited back to review progress
during the next academic year.

To strengthen governance, the Audit and Risk Committee was formally constituted in September 2018. Until
then, its remit had been covered through the Finance and Resources Committee.

The current scheme of delegation is outlined in summary in the Quick Reference Table of Governance
Responsibilities November 2019 shown on the CSET website.

Local Governance Committee

The Board has also delegated some responsibilities to Local Governance Committees. Each school has a
separate Local Governance Committee to ensure that there is local oversight of each school and a strong
connection with the local community.

The purpose of the Local Governance Committee is to undertake the delegated responsibility on behalf of the
Board for each school to ensure that all the schools in the Trust provide high quality education which has a
positive impact on all pupils.

All Chairs of Local Governance Committees are members of the Governance and Standards Committee.
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Governance {continued)
Governance and Standards Committee
Purpose:

» To ensure that CSET schools are providing high quality education delivering the best possible outcomes for
students, within the context of the Trust’s vision and values.

» To ensure that governance within the Trust is of the highest standard and that all schools within the Trust
are effectively supported and held to account.

» To support the Board by providing rigorous scrutiny of the performance of schools, with reference fo the
Ofsted frameworks and national performance measures, including the monitoring of internal tracking data -
during the academic year.

¢ To promote effective working between the Board and the Local Governance Committees.

Five Trustees are members of this Committee, currently chaired by the Chair of the Board. Al Chairs of LGCs
also attend this committee. (All trustees are marked with a *)

Trustee Meetings attended Qut of a possible
Rheona Allgocd* 4 4
Richard Bayliss 1
Rhiannon Clancy* 4 4
Maggie Cook* 1 1
Paulin Dixon 3 4
Ann Duff 4 4
Paul Harrod* 0 4
Susannah Hill* 4 4
David Moran* 1 1
Jayne Prior* . 4 4
William Roberts* - 4 4
Nina Streeting 3 4
Sue Thomas 2 4
Clare Traylor 2 3

Local Governance Committees

The Board has also delegated some responsibilities to Local Governance Committees. Each school has a
separate Local Governance Committee to ensure that there is local oversight of each school and a strong
connection with the local community.

All Chairs of Local Governance Committees are members of the Governance and Standards Committee.
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Governance {continued)
Finance and Resources Committee

The Finance and Resources Committee is a sub-committee of the main Beard of Trustees. lts purpose is o
support the Board in ensuring that a framework is established and maintained for optimising the employment of
all the resources available to the Trust to enable |t to meet its business and financial objectives. There were no
particular issues dealt with in the year.

During the year one new Trustees joined the committee. Attendance at meetings in the year was as follows:

Trustee Meetings attended Qut of a possible

Rhona Aligood 9
Paul Harrod
Andrew Levitt
Simon MacScorley
Cclin McDougall
David Moran
William Roberts
Chris White-Horne

OOMNO M
-
OWWMN =0 =0

Audit and Risk Assurance

The Audit and Risk Assurance Committee is a sub-committee of the main Board of Trustees. Its purpose is to
maintain an oversight of the Trust's financial, governance, risk management and internal control systems; and
report its findings termly and annually to the Trust Board and the Accounting Officer as a critical element of the
Trust's annual reporting requirements. There were no particular issues dealt with in the year.

During the year no new Trustees joined the committee. Attendance at meetings in the year was as follows:

Trustee Meetings attended Out of a possible
Rhona Aligood 7 7
Andrew Levitt 7 7
Colin McDougall 4 7
William Roberts 7 7
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Review of value for money

As Accounting Officer the Chief Executive has responsibility for ensuring that the Trust delivers good value in
the use of public resources. The Accounting Officer understands that vatue for money refers to the educational
and wider societal cutcomes achieved in return for the taxpayer resources received.

The Accounting Officer considers how the Trust's use of its resources has provided good value for money
during each academic year, and reports to the Board of Trustees where value for money can be improved,
including the use of benchmarking data where appropriate. The Accounting Officer for the Trust has delivered
improved value for money during the year by:

Robust financial governance and budget management.

Value for money purchasing.

Reviewing controls and managing risk,

Considering allocation/ftargeting/use of resources,

Chaltenging proposals and examining their effectiveness and efficiency.

Deploying staff more effectively.

QOutlining procedures for accepting best value quotes, noting that this is not necessarily the cheapest quote.

An example of this has been the systemic review of the finance system, appointment of key financial staff and
financial training for Trust leaders. This has enabled the production of clear and concise financial information to
enable decision making on the use of resources, particularly around staffing.

The financial oversight and governance has been strengthened as Trustees can now challenge the use of
finances and understand the financial processes to ensure that the Trust achieves value for money and
benchmarking across Trust schools. An example of this has been the Trust wide purchasing of licensing for
some curriculum items as well as alignment of some parental on-line payment systems.

The purpose of the system of internal control

The system of internal control is designed to manage risk to a reasonable level rather than to eliminate all risk
of failure to achieve policies, aims and objectives. It can, therefore, only provide reasonable and not absolute
assurance of effectiveness. The system of internal control is based on an ongeing process designed to identify
and prioritise the risks the achievement of Trust policies, aims and objectives, to evaluate the likelihood of
those risks being realised and the impact should they be realised, and to manage them efficiently, effectively
and economically. The system of internal control has been in place in CSET for the period from 1 September
2019 to 31 August 2020 and up to the date of approval of the annual report and financial statements.
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Capacity to handle risk : : :

The Board of Trustees has reviewed the key risks to which the Trust is exposed together with the operating,
financial and compliance controls that have been implemented to mitigate those risks. The Board of Trustees is
of the view that there is a formal ongoing process for identifying, evaluating and managing the Academy Trust's
significant risks that have been in place for the period from 1 September 2019 to 31 August 2020 and up to the
date of approval of the annual report and financial statements. This process is regularly reviewed by the Board
of Trustees.

The risk and control framework

The Trust's system of internal financial control is based on a framework of regular management information
and administrative procedures including the segregation of duties and a system of delegation and
accountability. In particular, it includes:

. comprehensive budgeting and monitoring systems with an annual budget and periodic financial reports
which are reviewed and agreed by the Board of Trustees

. regular reviews by the Finance and General Purposes Committee of reports which indicate financial

performance against the forecasts and of major purchase pians, capital works and expenditure

programmes

setting targets to measure financial and other performance

clearly defined purchasing (asset purchase or capital investment) guidelines

Delegation of authority and segregation of duties

identification and management of risks

The Board of Trustees has decided to employ South Gloucestershire, (Lead auditor Justine Podlton),' as
internal auditor.

The Trust is provided with a programme of internal scrutiny providing independent assurance to the board that
its financial and non-financial controls and risk management procedures are operating effectively. South
Gloucestershire Council provides an annual audit programme covering a range of areas for scrutiny. This is
agreed at the Audit and Risk Committee.

The internal auditor's role includes giving advice on financial matters and performing a range of checks on the
Trust's financial systems. In particular, the checks carried out in the current period included testing around
contract and payroll control for casual members of staff.

On an annual basis the auditor reports to the Board of Trustees, through the Audit and Risk Committee, on the
operation of the systems of control and on the discharge of the Board of Trustees’ financial responsibilities.

As a result of Covid and school closures from March 2020 the other items on the scheduled programme of work

have been suspended, but a comprehensive programme has been agreed and is in place from January 2021 to
ensure all control issues are in place.
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Review of effectiveness

As accounting officer, the Chief Executive has responsibility for reviewing the effectiveness of the system of
internal control. During the year in question the review has been informed by:

the work of the internal auditor;

the work of the external auditor;

the financial management and governance self-assessment process;

The work of the DFO within the Trust who has responsibility for the development and maintenance of the
internal control framework.

The Accounting Officer has been advised of the implications of the result of their review of the system of
internal control by the Audit and Risk Committee and a plan ensure continuous improvement of the system is in
place.

Approved by order of the members of the Board of Trustees on 18th January 2021 and signed
on their behalf by:

S SO jer—

Susannah Hill William Roberts
Chair of Board of Trustees : Accounting Officer
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Statement on Regularity, Propriety and Compliance

As accounting officer of Castle School Education Trust | have considered my responsibility to notify the Trust
board of Trustees and the Education & Skills Funding Agency (ESFA) of material irregularity, impropriety and
non-compliance with terms and conditions of all funding received by the Trust, under the funding agreement in
place between the Trust and the Secretary of State for Education. As part of my consideration | have had due
regard to the requirements of the Academies Financial Handbook 2019,

| cbnfirm that | and the Trust board of Trustees are able to identify any material irregular or improper use of all
funds by the Trust, or material non-compliance with the terms and conditions of funding under the Trust's
funding agreement and the Academies Financial Handbook 2019.

I confirm that the following instances of material irregularity, impropriety or funding non-compliance discovered

to date have been notified to the board of trustees and ESFA. If any instances are identified after the date of
this statement, these will be notified to the board of trustees and ESFA:

Wmf
William Roberts

Chief Executive and Accounting Officer
18th January 2021
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The Trustees (who are also the directors of the charitable company for the purposes of company law) are
respensible for preparing the Trustees' Report and the financial statements in accordance with the Academies
Accounts Direction published by the Education and Skills Funding Agency, United Kingdom Accounting
Standards (United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice) and applicable law and regulations.

Company law requires the Trustees to prepare financial statements for each financial . Under company law, the
Trustees must not approve the financial statements unless they are satisfied that they give a true and fair view
of the state of affairs of the charitable company and of its incoming resources and application of resources,
including its income and expenditure, for that period. In preparing these financial statements, the Trustees are
required to:

. select suitable accounting policies and then apply them consistently;
observe the methods and principles of the Charities SORP 2019 and the Academies Accounts Direction
2019 to 2020;

. make judgements and accounting estimates that are reasonable and prudent;

. state whether applicable UK Accounting Standards have been followed, subject to any material
departures disclosed and explained in the financial statements;

. prepare the financial statements on the going concern basis unless it is inappropriate to presume that the .

charitable company will continue in business.

The Trustees are responsible for keeping adequate accounting records that are sufficient to show and explain
the charitable company's transactions and disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the financial position
of the charitable company and enable them to ensure that the financia! statements comply with the Companies
Act 2006. They are also responsible for safeguarding the assets of the charitable company and hence for taking
reasonable steps for the prevention and detection of fraud and other irregularities.

The Trustees are responsible for ensuring that in its conduct and operation the charitable company applies
financial and other controls, which conform with the requirements both of propriety and of good financial
management. They are also responsible for ensuring grants received from ESFA/DIE have been applied for the
purposes intended.

The Trustees are responsible for the maintenance and integrity of the corporate and financial information
included on the charitable company's website. Legislation in the United Kingdom governing the preparation and
dissemination of financial statements may differ from legislation in cther jurisdictions.

Approved by order of the members of the Board of Trustees on 18th January 2021 and signed on
their behalf by:

SUMA A

Susannah Hill
Chair of Board of Trustees
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Independent Auditor's Report on the financial statements to the of Castle Scheol Education Trust

Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of Castle Schoal Education Trust (“the Trust”} for the year ended 31
August 2020 which comprise the statement of financial activities {incorporating income and expenditure
account), balance sheet, statement of cash flows and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of
significant accounting policies. The financial reporting framework that has been applied in their preparation is
applicable law and United Kingdom Accounting Standards, including Financial Reporting Standard 102 The
Financial Reporting Standard applicable in the UK and Republic of Ireland (United Kingdom Generally
Accepted Accounting Practice) and the Academies Accounts Direction 2019 to 2020 issued by the Education &
Skills Funding Agency (ESFA).

In our opinion, the financial statements:

. give a true and fair view of the state of the Trust's affairs as at 31 August 2020 and of its incoming
resources and application of resources, including its income and expenditure, for the year then ended;

. have been properly prepared in accordance with United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting
Practice,

. have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006, and

. have been prepared in accordance the Academies Accounts Direction 2018 to 2020.
Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK) {ISAs (UK)} and
applicable law. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor's responsibilities
for the audit of the financial statements section of our report. We are independent of the Trust in accordance
with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements in the UK, including the
FRC's Ethical Standard, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these
requirements. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our opinion,

Conclusions relating to going concern

We have nothing to report in respect of the following matters in refation to which the ISAs (UK) require us to
report to you where:

. the Trustees’ use of the going concern basis of accounting in the preparation of the financial statements
is not appropriate; or

. the Trustees have not disclosed in the financial statements any identified material uncertainties that may
cast significant doubt about the Trust's ability to continue to adopt the going concern basis of accounting
for a period of at least twelve months from the date when the financial statements are authorised for
issue.
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Independent Auditor's Report on the financial statements to the of Castle School Education Trust
(continued)

Other information

The other information comprises the information included in the annua! report, other than the financial
statements and our auditor's report thereon. The Trustees are responsible for the other information. Our
opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and, except to the extent otherwise
explicitly stated in our report, we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
included in the Annual Report, other than the financial statements and our auditor's report thereon and, in doing
so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our
knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If we identify such material
inconsistencies or apparent material misstatements, we are required to determine whether there is a material
misstatement in the financial statements or a material misstatement of the other information. If, based on the
work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are
required to report that fact,

We have nothing to réport in this regard.
Opinions on other matters prescribed by the Companies Act 2006
In our opinion, based on the work undertaken in the course of the audit;

. the information given in the Trustees’ report, which includes the Directors’ Report and the Strategic
Report prepared for the purposes of Company Law, for the financial year for which the financial
statements are prepared is consistent with the financial statements; and

. the Strategic Report and the Directors’ Report, which are included in the Trusteés’ report, have been
prepared in accordance with applicable legal requirements.

Matters on which we are required to report by exception

In the light of the knowledge and understanding of the Trust and its environment chtained in the course of the
audit, we have not identified material misstatements in the Trustees’ Report or the Strategic Report.

We have nothing to report in respect of the following matters in relation to which the Companies Act 2008
requires us to report to you if, in our opinion;

. adequate accounting records have not been kept, or returns adequate for our audit have not been
received from branches not visited by us; or

. the financial statements are not in agreement with the accounting records and returns; or
. certain disclosures of Trustees’ remuneration specified by law are not made; or
. we have not received all the information and explanations we require for our audit.
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{continued)

Responsibilities of Trustees

As explained more fully in the Statement of Trustees' Responsibilities, the Trustees are responsible for the
preparation of the financial statements and for being satisfied that they give a true and fair view, and for such
internal control as the Trustees determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the Trustees are responsible for assessing the Trust's ability to continue
as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern
basis of accounting unless the Trustees either intend to liguidate the Trust or to cease operations, or have no
realistic alternative but to do so.

Auditor's responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

We have been appointed as auditor under the Companies Act 2006 and report in accordance with the Act and
relevant regulations made or having effect thereunder.

Qur objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes our
opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with ISAs (UK) will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise
from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be
expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

A further description of our responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements is located at the Financial
Reporting Council's website at: https:/iwww.frc.org.ulk/auditorsresponsibilities. This description forms part of our
auditor's report.

Use of our report

This report is made solely to the Trust's members, as a body, in accordance with Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the
Companies Act 2006. Our audit work has been undertaken so that we might state to the Trust's members those
matters we are required to state to them in an auditor's report and for no other purpose. To the fullest extent

permitted by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than the Trust and the Trust's
members as a body, for our audit work, for this report, or for the opinions we have formed.

BDO LLY

Heather Wheelhouse (Senior Statutory Auditor)
For and on behalf of BDO LLP

Bristol

United Kingdom

Date: 28 January 2021

BDO LLP is a limited liability partnership registered in England and Wales (with registered number OC305127).
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Castle School Education Trust
(A Company Limited by Guarantee)

Independent Reporting Accountant's Assurance Report on Regularity to Castle School Education
Trust and the Education and Skills Funding Agency

In accordance with the terms of cur engagement letier dated 25 February 2018 and further to the requirements
of the Education and Skills Funding Agency (ESFA} as included in the Academies Accounts Direction 2019 to
2020, we have carried out an engagement to obtain limited assurance about whether the expenditure disbursed
and income received by Castle School Education Trust during the year 1 September 2019 to 31 August 2020
have been applied to the purposes identified by Parliament and the financial transactions conform to the
authorities which govern them.

This report is made solely to Castle School Education Trust and ESFA in accordance with the terms of our
engagement letter. Our work has been undertaken so that we might state to Castle School Education Trust and
ESFA those matters we are required to state in a report and for no other purpose. To the fullest extent
permitted by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than Castle School Education
Trust and ESFA, for our work, for this report, or for the conclusion we have formed.

Respective responsibilities of Castle School Education Trust's accounting officer and the
reporting accountant

The accounting officer is responsible, under the requirements of Castle School Education Trust's funding
agreement with the Secretary of State for Education dated 4 September 2012 and the Academies Financial
Handbook, extant from 1 September 2018, for ensuring that expenditure disbursed and income received is
applied for the purposes intended by Parliament and the financial transactions conform to the authorities which
govern them.

Our responsibilities for this engagement are established in the United Kingdom by our profession's ethical
guidance and are to obtain limited assurance and report in accordance with our engagement letter and the
requirements of the Academies Accounts Direction 2018 to 2020. We report to you whether anything has come
to our attention in carrying cut our work which suggests that in all material respects, expenditure disbursed and
income received during the year 1 September 2019 to 31 August 2020 have not been applied to purposes
intended by Parliament or that the financial fransactions do not conform to the authorities which govern them.

Approach

We conducted our engagement in accordance with the Academies Accounts Direction 2019 to 2020 issued by
ESFA. We performed a limited assurance engagement as defined in our engagement letter.

The objective of a limited assurance engagement is to perform such procedures as to obtain information and
explanations in order to provide us with sufficient appropriate evidence to express a negative conclusion on
regularity.

A limited assurance engagement is more fimited in scope than a reasonable assurance engagement and
consequently does not enable us to obtain assurance that we would become aware of all significant matters
that might be identified in a reasonable assurance engagement. Accordingly, we do not express a positive
opinion.

Our engagement includes examination, on a test basis, of evidence relevant to the regularity and propriety of
the Trust's income and expenditure.
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Castle School Education Trust
+ (A Company Limited by Guarantee)

Independent Reporting Accountant's Assurance Report on Regularity to Castle School Education

+ - Trust and the Education & Skills Funding Agency (continued)

Approach {continued) T

The work undertaken to draw our conclusion includes an assessment of the level of risk associated with the
specific categories of income and expenditure and the potential for irregularities to be identified.

Our procedures included, but were not limited to, the following:

Reviewing minutes of meetings, management accounts and made enquiries of management;

Performing sample testing of expenditure ensuring items are for the School's purposes and are
appropriately authorised, '

Reviewing the procedures for identifying and declaring related parties and other business interests;

Scrutinising journals, and other adjustments posted during the year for evidence of unusual entries and
made further enquiries into any such items where relevant;

Taking a selection of nominal ledger accounts for evidence of unusual entries and made further enquiries
into any such items where relevant;

Performing an evaluation of the general control environment of the Trust;

Reviewing nominal ledger accounts for any large or unusual entries and obtaining supporting
documentation;

Reviewing any family members of directors or senior leadership team appointed in the pericd, checking
that the School's processes have been followed and the remuneration appears reasonabile;

Performing a review of the tendering policy, enquiring of any tenders completed in the period and
completing a review of tenders completed for the appropriate documentation and authorisation;

Enquiries of management of new leases in the period, ensuring they are entered into in line with the
financial handbeook policies;

Review of the Trust's website for the correct disclosure of governance information in line with ESFA
guidelines; '

Performing a review of the Business Continuity Plan in place by the Trust.
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Independent Reporting Accountant's Assurance Report on Regularity to Castle School Education
Trust and the Education & Skills Funding Agency {continued)

Conclusion
In the course of our work, nothing has come to our attention which suggest in all material respects the
expenditure disbursed and income received during the year 1 September 2019 to 31 August 2020 has not been

applied to purposes intended by Parliament and the financial transactions do not conform to the authorities
which govern them.

BDO LLP

BDO LLP

Reporting Accountant

Bristof

Date: 28 January 2021

BDO LLP is a limited liability partnership registered in England and Wales {with registered number OC305127).
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Castle School Education Trust
- (A Company Limited by Guarantee)

Statement of financial activities {(incorporating income and expenditure account)
For the Year Ended 31 August 2020

» Restricted
Unrestricted © Restricted fixed asset Total Total
funds funds funds funds funds
2020 2020 2020 2020 2019
Note £000 £000 £000 £000 £000
Income from:
Donations and capital
grants 3 - 41 1,651 1,692 ) 1,670
Charitable activities 4 28 26,878 - 26,906 " 25,766
Other trading activites 5 139 . - - 139 149
Investments & 9 - - 9 12
Total incohe ' 176 26,919 1,651 28,746 27,597
Expenditure on:
Raising funds 7.8 18 - - 18 23
Charitable activities 7.8 19 27,721 3,007 30,747 29,786
Total expenditure 7 37 27,721 3,007 30,765 29,809
Net
income/{expenditure) 9 139 {802) {1,356) (2,019) {2.212)
Transfers between
funds 18 - - - - -
Other recognised
gains/{losses):
Actuarial gains/(losses)
on defined benefit
pension schemes 26 - 33 - 33 {4,662)
Net movement in
139 {769) {1,356) {1,986) {6,874)

funds
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Castle School Education Trust
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Statement of financial activities (incorporating income and expenditure account) (continued)
For the Year Ended 31 August 2020

Restricted
Unrestricted Restricted fixed asset Total Total
funds funds funds funds funds
2020 2020 2020 2020 2019
Note £000 £000 £000 £000 £000
Reconciliation of
funds:
Total funds brought
forward 1,237 {13,343) 65,921 53,815 60,688
Net movement in funds 139 (769) (1,356) {1,986) (6,874)
Total funds carried
forward 1,376 (14,112) 64,565 51,829 53,815

The Statement of Financial Activities includes all gains and losses recognised in the year.

The notes on pages 42 to 77 form part of these financial statements. -
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Castle School Education Trust

{A Company Limited by Guarantee)
Registered number: 08397975

Balance Sheet
As at 31 August 2020

2020 2020
Note £000 £000
Fixed assets
Tangible assets 14 60,657
60,657
Current assets )
Debtors . 15 2,688
Investments o 16 1,639
Cash at bank and in hand . 22 3,061
7,388
Creditors: amounts falling due within one
year 17 {1,922)
Net current assets . 5,466
Total assets less current liabilities 66,123
Net assets excluding pension liability ' : ‘ 66,123
Defined benefit pension scheme liability 26 (14,294)
Total net assets 19 51,829
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2019
£000

2,538
1,633
2,362

6,533

(2,569)

2019
£000

63,387

63,387

3,964
67,351

67,351
(13,536)

53,815




Castle School Education Trust

{A Company Limited by Guarantee)
Registered number: 08397975

Balance Sheet (continued)
As at 31 August 2020

Note

Funds of the Trust
Restricted funds:

Fixed asset funds
Restricted income funds

Restricted funds excluding pension liability _

Pension reserve

Total restricted funds 18
Unrestricted income funds -

General funds
Total unrestricted income funds - 18

Total funds 18

]

2020 2020
£000 £000
64,565
182
64,747
(14,294)
50,453
1,376
1,376
51,829

2019
£000

65,921
103

66,114

(13,538)

1,237

2019
£000

52,578

1,237

53,815

" .The financial statements on pages 37 to 77 were approved by the Trustees on 18th January 2021 .

and are signed on their behalf, by:

Susannah HiH
Chair of the Board of Trustees

The notes on pages 42 to 77 form part of these financial statements. -
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Castle School Education Trust
{A Company Limited by Guarantee)

Statement of Cash Flows
For the Year Ended 31 August 2020

. 2020 2019
Note £000 £000
Cash flows from operating activities : ‘
Net cash {used in)/provided by operating activities s 20 (438) 425
Cash flows from investing activities 21 _ 1,143 {681)
Change in cash and cash equivalents in the year ' 705 {236)
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 3,995 4,231
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year N o 22,23 4,700 3,995

The notes on pages 42 to 77 form part _of these financial statements™
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Castle School Education Trust
{A Company Limited by Guarantee)

Notes to the Financial Statements
For the Year Ended 31 August 2020

1.

Accounting policies

11

Castle School Education Trust (CSET) is a private company limited by guarantee, incorporated in
England and Wales under the Companies Act. The registered office address is given on the
reference and administration details page and the nature of the Trust's operations and principal
activities are set out in the Trustees' Report, ’

A summary of the principal accounting pelicies adopted {(which have been applied consistently,
except where noted), judgements and key sources of estimation uncertainty, is set out below.

Basis of preparation of financial statements

The financial statements of the Trust, which is a public benefit entity under FRS 102, have been
prepared under the historic cost convention in accordance with the Financial Reporting Standard
Applicable in the UK and Republic of Ireland (FRS 102}, the Accounting and Reporting by Charities:
Statement of Recommended Practice applicable to charities preparing their accounts in accordance
with the Financial Reporting Standard applicable in the UK and Republic of ireland (FRS 102}
{Charities SORP (FRS 102)), the Academies’ Accounts Direction 2019/20 issued by ESFA, the
Charities Act 2011 and the Companies Act 2006, :

These financial statements are for Castle School Education Trust as a separate entity. The Trust
has taken advantage of the exemption under s405 of the Companies Act 2006 not to prepare group
accounts as its subsidiary, Premium Partners Limited, is not material for the purposes of giving a
true and fair view.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
"For the Year Ended 31 August 2020

1.

Accounting policies (continued)

1.2 Going coencern

The Trustees assess whether the use of going concern is appropriate i.e. whether there are any
material uncertainties related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the ability of
the Trust to continue as a going concern. The Trustees make this assessment in respect of a period
of at least one year from the date of authorisation for issue of the financial statements and have
concluded that the Trust has adequate resources to continue in operational existence for the
foreseeable future and there are no material uncertainties about the Trust's ability to continue as a
going concern, thus they continue fo adopt the going concem basis of accounting in preparing the
financial statements.

In reaching this conclusion, the Trustees have reviewed forecast income and expenditure cashflows,
and considered how the pressure on staffing and expenditure can be managed in the light of
anticipated funding. The Trust is reliant on continued funding from the Department of Education,
including funding for pay awards and pension contribution agreements that may be outside the
Trustees' contral. In particular, GAG funding is only committed annually based on pupil census
numbers each October. Nonetheless, the Trustees have a reasonable expectation that adequate
funding will continue to be received. The Trust also has a large pension deficit, but the Trustees
have no reason to believe that annual contribution cormmitments will not be met.

Covid-19

Specific planning has been done {o ensure appropriate sums have been set aside to cover
exceptional costs arising from the current Pandemic and this has been included, where possible, in
forward budget planning and for the period until 31 August 2022. To note that the Trust are, like all
other educational establishments, subject to potential changes in government funding and this has
been reactive to the situational need, i.e. Covid exceptional grant funding. Therefore, these items
may not be covered in future scenario planning.

Our detailed forward planning for the years AY2020-21 and AY2021-22 has taken into account
projected student numbers, which are increasing, and additional funding due to the implementation
of the National Funding Formula. However, it also includes for 3% teacher and 2% support staff
cumulative pay increases which may be above the levels suggested by government. This is
reflected in our modelling showing a net deterioration in free reserves of approximately £23k.
ldentified risks are:

» Exceptional Covid Costs — costs of additional cleaning materials, PPE and janitor time
(potentially an additional £129k). However, there is the potential to re-tender this contract in
June 2021 and negotiate different and more inclusive terms, driving costs down via an extended
contract term.

s Staff cover costs — this is being reviewed as part of the |ICFP financial models and also as part
of an HR review and strengthening of KPI monitoring. Worst case scenario is a deficit to budget
of £25k for AY20-21.

To note that the current government Coronavirus Workforce Fund may be able to mitigate some
of the additional supply costs.

¢ Student losses - funding for students is on a lagged basis so losses in student numbers will not
affect the AY20-21 grant funding which is already fixed. Funding for AY21-22 will be based on
actual student numbers in the current financial year which have been recorded in the latest
census submissions already. Initial data suggests the Trust numbers are increasing so income
would rise accordingly.

e Lettings — these are not material for the AY18-20, reduced income of £3.8k, and are contained
in PPL Ltd for future years. The schools do not budget for any Deed or Gift Aid from PPL Ltd, so
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1.

Accounting policies (continued)

1.2 Going concemrn (continued)

there is no anticipated loss of income.

» Catering costs — due to restrictions in the length of break times and zoning of school areas so
that students stay within Year group ‘bubbles’, the opportunity for students to access some
catering has been reduced. It is anticipated that the current model will be in place for the whole
of the Academic year in 20-21. The impact on catering is an anticipated deficit to budget of
£50k.

» Overall, the worst-case scenario is an impact to budget for AY20-21 of c. £75k.

1.3 Income

All incoming resources are recognised when the Trust has entitlement to the funds, the receipt is
probable and the amount can be measured reliably.

« Grants

Grants are included in the Statement of Financia! Activities on a receivable basis. The balance of
income received for specific purposes but not expended during the period is shown in the relevant
funds on the Balance Sheet. Where income is received in advance of meeting any performance-
related conditions there is not unconditional entitiement to the income and its recognition is deferred
and included in creditors as deferred income until the performance-related conditions are met.
Where entitlement occurs before income is received, the income is accrued.

General Annual Grant is recognised in full in the Statement of Financial Activities in the year for
which it is receivable and any abatement in respect of the year is deducted from income and
recognised as a liability.

Capital grants are recognised in full when there is an unconditional entitlement to the grant. Unspent
amounts of capital grants are reflected in the Balance Sheet in the restricted fixed asset fund.
Capital grants are recognised when there is entittement and are not deferred over the life of the
asset on which they are expended.

¢ Sponsorship income

Sponsorship income provided to the Trust which amounts to a donation is recognised in the
Statement of Financial Activities in the year in which it is receivable (where there are no
performance-related conditions} where receipt is probable and it can be measured reliably.

« Donations

Deonations are racognised on a receivable basis (where there are no performance-related conditions)
where the receipt is probable and the amount can be reliably measured.

¢« Otherincome

Other income, including the hire of facilities, is recognised in the year it is receivable and to the
extent the Trust has provided the goods or services.
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1.

Accounting policies (continued) '

14

1.5

Expenditure

Expenditure is recognised once there is a legal or constructive obligation to transfer economic
henefit to a third party, it is probable that a transfer of economic benefits will be required in
settlement and the amount of the obligation can be measured reliably. Expenditure is classified by
activity. The costs of each activity are made up of the total of direct costs and shared costs,
including support costs involved in undertaking each activity. Direct costs attributable to a single
activity are allocated directly to that activity. Shared costs which contribute to more than one activity
and support costs which are not attributable to a single activity are apportioned between those
activities on a basis consistent with the use of resources. Central staff costs are allocated on the
basis of time spent, and depreciation charges allocated on the portion of the asset’s use.

Charitable activities

These are costs incurred on the Trust's educational operations, including support costs and costs
relating to the governance of the Trust apportioned to charitable activities.

All resources expended are inclusive of irrecoverable VAT.
Tangible fixed assets

Assets costing £2,000 or more are capitalised as tangible fixed assets and are carried at cost, net of
depreciation and any provision for impairment.

Where tangible fixed assets have been acquired with the aid of specific grants, either from the
government or from the private sector, they are included in the Balance Sheet at cost and
depreciated over their expected useful economic life. Where there are specific conditions attached
to the funding requiring the continued use of the asset, the related grants are credited to a restricted
fixed asset fund in the Statement of Financial Activities and carried forward in the Balance Sheet.
Depreciation on the relevant assets is charged directly to the restricted fixed asset fund in the
Statement of Financial Activities. Where tangible fixed assets have been acquired with unrestricted
funds, depreciation on such assets is charged to the unrestricted fund.

Depreciation is provided on all tangible fixed assets other than freehold land and assets under
construction, at rates calculated to write off the cost of each asset, less their estimated residual
value, on a straight-line basis over its expected useful life.

The Trust separately identifies the major components of its schools buildings and charges

depreciation so as to write-down the cost of each component to its estimated residual value, over its
expected useful life.
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Accounting policies (continued)

1.5

- 1.6

1.7

1.8

1.9

Tangible fixed assets (continued)

The useful lives are as follows:

Leasehold {and - 125 years

Leasehold buildings & building - 50 years
improvements

Building components:

Bathrooms . - 10-30 years

Kitchens - 10-30 years

Lifts - 10-30 years

Windows - 5-20vyears

Doors - 10 years

Equipment (inc sports - Syears
equipment)

Computer equipment and - 3-5years
software

Motor vehicles/minibuses - 5 years

Assets in the course of construction are included at cost. Depreciation on these assets is not
charged until they are brought into use and reclassified to freehold or leasehold land and buildings.

A review for impairment of a fixed asset is carried out if events or changes in circumstances
indicate that the carrying value of any fixed asset may not be recoverable. Shortfalls between the
carrying value of fixed assets and their recoverable amounts are recognised as impairments.
Impairment losses are recognised in the Statement of Financial Activities.

Investments
Investments in subsidiaries are valued at cost less provision for impairment.
Debtors

Trade and other debtors are recognised at the settlement amount after any trade discount offered.
Prepayments are valued at the amount prepaid net of any trade discounts due.

Cash at bank and in hand

Cash is represented by cash in hand and deposits with financial institutions repayable without
penalty on notice or not more than 24 hours. Cash equivalents are short-term highly liquid
investments with a short maturity of three months or less from the date of acquisition or opening of
the deposit or similar account.

Liabilities

Liabilities are recognised when there is an cbligation at the Balance Sheet date as a result of a past
event, it is probable that a transfer of economic benefit will be required in setfement, and the
amount of the settiement can be estimated reliably. Liabilities are recognised at the amount that the
Trust anticipates it will pay to settle the debt or the amount it has received as advanced payments
for the goods or services it must provide.
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Accounting policies (continued) s ‘ .

1.10 Financial instruments . ¥

The Trust only holds basic financial instruments as defined in FRS 102. The financial assets and
financial liabilities of the Trust and their measurement bases are as follows:

Financial assets - tfrade and other debtors are basic financial instruments and are debt instruments
measured at amortised cost as detailed in note 15. Prepayments are not financial instruments.
Amounts due to the Trust's wholly owned subsidiary are held at face value less any impairment.

Cash at bank is classified as a basic financial instrument and is measured at face value.

Financial fiabilities - trade creditors, accruals and other creditors are financial instruments, and are
measured at amortised cost as detailed in note 17. Taxation and social security are not included in
the financial instruments disclosure definition. Deferred income is not deemed to be a financial
liability, as the cash settlement has already taken place and there is an obligation to deliver services
rather than cash or another financial instrument. Amounts due to the Trust's wholly owned
subsidiary are held at face value less any impairment.

1.11 Operating leases

Rentals paid under operating leases are charged to the Statement of Financial Activities on a
straight line basis over the lease term.

1.12 Pensions

Retirement benefits to employees of the Trust are provided by the Teachers' Pension Scheme
("TPS") and the Local Government Pension Scheme ("LGPS"). These are defined benefit schemes.

The TPS is an unfunded scheme and contributions are calculated so as to spread the cost of
pensions over employees’ working fives with the Trust in such a way that the pension cost is a
substantially level percentage of current and future pensionable payroll. The contributions are
determined by the Government Actuary on the basis of quadrennial valuations using a prospective
unit credit method. TPS is an unfunded multi-employer scheme with no underlying assets to assign
between employers. Consequently, the TPS is treated as a defined contribution scheme for
accounting purposes and the contributions recognised in the period to which they relate.

The LGPS is a funded multi-employer scheme and the assets are held separately from those of the
Trust in separate trustee administered funds. Pension scheme assets are measured at fair value
and liabilities are measured on an actuarial basis using the projected unit credit method and
discounted at a rate equivalent to the current rate of return on a high quality corporate bond of
equivalent term and currency to the liabilities. The actuarial valuations are obtained at least
triennially and are updated at each Balance Sheet date. The amounts charged to operating surplus
are the current service costs and the costs of scheme introductions, benefit changes, settlements
and curtailments. They are included as part of staff costs as incurred. Net interest on the net defined
benefit liability/asset is also recognised in the Statement of Financial Activities and comprises the
interest cost on the defined benefit obligation and interest income on the scheme assets, calculated
by multiplying the fair value of the scheme assets at the beginning of the period by the rate used to
discount the benefit obligations. The difference between the interest income on the scheme assets
and the actual return on the scheme assets is recognised in other recognised gains and losses.

Actuarial gains and losses are recognised immediately in other recognised gains and losses.

Page 47



Castle School Education Trust
{A Company Limited by Guarantee)

Notes to the Financial Statements
For the Year Ended 31 August 2020

1.

Accounting policies (continued)

1.13 Fund accounting

Unrestricted income funds represent those resources which may be used towards meeting any of
the charitable objects of the Trust at the discretion of the Trustees.

Designated funds comprise unrestricted funds that have been set aside by the Trustees for
particular purposes. The aim and use of each designated fund is set out in the notes to the financial
statements.

Restricted fixed asset funds are resources which are to be applied to specific capital purposes
imposed by the funders where the asset acquired or created is held for a specific purpose.

Restricted general funds comprise all other restricted funds received with restrictions imposed by
the funder/donor and include grants from the Department for Education Group.

Investment income, gains and losses are allocated to the appropriate fund.
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Critical accounting estimates and areas of judgement e . '

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and are based on historical experience and other
factors, including expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable under the
circumstances. :

Critical accounting estimates and assumptions:

The Trust makes estimates and assumptions concerning the future. The resulting accounting estimates
and assumptions will, by definition, seldom equal the related actual results. The estimates and
assumptions that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of
assets and liabilities within the next financial year are discussed below.

The present value of the Local Government Pension Scheme defined benefit liability depends on a
number of factors that are determined on an actuarial basis using a variety of assumptions. The
assumptions used in determining the net cost or income for pensions include the discount rate. Any
changes in these assumptions, which are disclosed in note 26, will impact the carrying amount of the
pension liability. Furthermore a roll forward approach which projects results from the latest full actuarial
valuation performed at 31 March 2019 has heen used by the actuary in valuing the pensions liability at
31 August 2020. Any differences between the figures derived from the roll forward approach and a full
actuarial valuation would impact on the carrying amount of the pension liability.

Critical areas of judgement;

Determine whether items of expenditure incurred should be classed as direct or support costs.
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Donations and capital grants

Other donations

Capital Grants

Other donations

Capital Grants

Restricted
Unrestricted Restricted fixed asset Total
funds funds funds funds
2020 2020 2020 2020
£000 £000 £000 £000
- 41 - 41
- - 1,651 1,651
- 41 1,651 1,692
Restricted
Unrestricted Restricted fixed asset Total
funds funds funds funds
2019 2019 2019 2019
£000 £000 £000 £000
30 51 - 81
- - 1,589 1,589
30 51 1,589 1,670
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Funding for the Trust's educatic;nal operations

o

DfE/ESFA grants
General Annual Grant (GAG)
Pupil Premium

Other DfE/EFA Grants

Other Government grants
Local authority grants

Other income from the Trust's educational operations
Contributions to trips

Consultancy

QOther income

Total 2020
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Unrestricted  Restricted Total
funds funds funds
2020 2020 2020
£000 £000 £000

- 22,418 22,418

- 783 783

- 1,697 1,697

- 24,898 24,898

- 1,258 1,258

- 1,258 1,258

- 584 584

- 16 16

28 122 150

28 722 750

28 26,878 26,906



Castle School Education Trust
{A Company Limited by Guarantee)

Notes to the Financial Statements
- For the Year Ended 31 August 2020

Funding for the Trust's educational operations (continued)

Unrestricted Restricted Total
funds funds funds
2019 2019 2019
£000 £000 £000
DfE/ESFA grants
General Annual Grant (GAG) - 22 240 22,240
Pupil Premium - 745 745
Other DfE/EFA Grants - 622 622
- 23,607 23,607
Other Government grants
Local authority grants b 1170 1,170
- 1,170 1,170
Other income from the Trust's educational operations
Contributions to trips [ 608 608
Consultancy 4’ 18 22
Other income 132 227 359
136 853 989
Total 2019 136 25630 25,766
Other trading activites
Unrestricted Total
funds funds
2020 2020
£000 £000
Hire of facilities 138 138
Other 1 1
139 139

Page 52




Castle School Education Trust
{A Company Limited by Guarantee)

Notes to the Financial Statements
For the Year Ended 31 August 2020

Other trading activites {continued)

Unrestricted Total
funds funds
2019 2019
£000 £000
Hire of facilities 149 149
Investment income
Unrestricted Total
funds funds
2020 2020
£000 £000
Bank interest 9 9
‘Unrestricted Total
funds funds
2019 2019
£000 £000
Bank interest 12 12
Expenditure
Staff Costs Premises Other Total
2020 2020 2020 2020
£000 £000 £000 £000
Expenditure on raising funds:
Direct costs 10 - 8 18
Educational operations:
Direct costs 20,806 3,007 1,556 25,369
Allocated support costs 1,858 1,742 1,778 5,378
30,765

Total 2020 22,674 4,749 3,342
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7. Expenditure (continued)

Staff Costs Premises Other Total
2019 2019 2019 2019
£000 £000 £000 £000

Expenditure on raising funds:
Direct cosis 15 - 8 23

Educational operations:

} Direct costs 19,104 3,290 1,987 24,381
i Allocated support costs 1,814 1,789 1,702 5,405

Total 2019 21,033 5,079 3,697 29,809

Expenditure on raising funds in 2019 was £23,000 which was unrestricted.

Expenditure on charitable activities in 2019 was £29,787,000 of which £366,000 was unrestricted,
£26,427,000 was restricted and £2,993,000 restricted fixed asset funds.

8. Charitable activities

Activities

undertaken Support Total

directly costs funds

2020 2020 2020 -

£000 £000 £000

Educational operations 25,369 5,378 30,747
, Activities

undertaken Support Total

directly costs funds

2019 2019 2019

£000 £000 £000

Educational operations 24,381 5,405 29,786
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Charitable activities (continued)

Analysis of support costs ST R

Staff costs

Catering

Cleaning

Energy costs

Security and transport
Insurance

Rent and rates
Maintenance of premises and equipment
Technology costs
Recruitment and support
Bank interest and charges
Other support costs
Governance costs
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Educational Total
operations funds
2020 2020

£000 £000

1,858 1,858

252 252

803 603

488 488

54 54

109 109

150 150

625 625

424 424

8 8

2 2

746 746

59 59

5,378 5,378
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Charitable activities (continued)

Analysis of support costs (continued)

Staff costs

Catering

Cleaning

Energy costs

Security and transport
Insurance

Rent and rates
Maintenance of premises and equipment
Technology costs
Recruitment and support
Bank interest and charges
Other support costs
Governance costs

Net income/{expenditure}

Net income/(expenditure) for the year includes:

Operating lease rentals
Depreciation of tangible fixed assets
Loss on disposal of fixed assets
Fees paid to auditor for:

- audit
- other services
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Educational Total
operations funds
2019 2019
£000 £000
1,914 1,914
226 226
601 601
524 524
92 92
126 126
153 153
511 511
351 351
19 19
3 3
845 845
40 40
5,405 5,405
2020 2019
£000 £000
21 40
3,007 3,122
- 168
34 30
21 13
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10.

Staff

a. Staff costs

Staff costs during the year were as follows:

Wages and salaries
Social security costs
Pension costs

Agency staff costs
Staff restructuring costs

Staff restructuring costs comprise:

Severance payments
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2020 2019
£000 £000
16,143 15,525
1,624 1,553
4,548 3,454
22,315 20,532
310 4886

49 15
22,674 21,033
2020 2019
£000 EC0O
49 15

49 15
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10.

Staff (continued)

b. Non-statutory/non-contractual staff severance payments

Included in staff restructuring costs are non-statutory/non-contractual severance payments totalling
£49,000 (2019: £15,000). Individually, the payments were: £20,000, £12,000, £9,700 and £7,300 (2019:
£15,000). The legal authority sought to make these ex-gratia payments was in compliance with the
Academies Financial Handbook 2019, being delegated authority or approval from the Education and
Skilis Funding Agency.

¢. Staff numbers

The average number of persons empioyed by the Trust during the year was as foliows:

2020 2019
No. No.
Teachers 315 351
Administration and support 250 344
Management 34 31
599 726

The average headcount expressed as full-time equivalents was:
2020 2019
No. No.
Teachers 264 318
Administrations and support 184 149
Management 32 28
480 495

d. Higher paid staff

The number of employees whose employee

£60,000 was:
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10.

Staff {continued)

d. Higher paid staff (continued)

2020 2019

No. No.

In the band £60,001 - £70,000 6 2

In the band £70,001 - £80,000 3 3

In the band £80,001 - £90,000 1 3
In the band £80,001 - £100,000 , 1 -

In the band £110,001 - £120,000 - 1
In the band £130,001 - £140,000 1 -

9 (2018: 8) of the above employees participated in the Teachers’ Pension Scheme and 1 employee in
LGPS. During the year ended 31 August 2020 employer's pension contributions for these staff
amounted to £214,000 (2019: £102,000).

e. Key management personnel
The key management personnel of the Trust comprise the Trustees and the senior management team as
listed on page 1. The total amount of employee benefits (including employer pension contributions and

employer national insurance contributions) received by key management personnel for their services to
the Trust was £361,000 (2019 £205,000).

Page 58




Castle School Education Trust
{A Company Limited by Guarantee)

Notes to the Financial Statements
For the Year Ended 31 August 2020

11. Central services
The Trust has provided the following central services to its academies during the year:

Strategic leadership;

Financiai services;

HR advice and administration;

IT services; :

Facilities and health & safety management;
Governance support; and

Educaticnal support

The Trust charges for these services on the following basis:

The central trust charges for these services based on 4% of the total income in the previous reporting
period.

The actual amounts charged during the year were as follows:

2020 2019

£000 £000
The Castle School 328 328
Charfield School 34 31
Downend School 253 236
Lyde Green 63 145
Mangotsfield School 233 228
Mariwood Schoo! ' 101 106
Severn Beach Primary School 25 24

Total 1,037 1,098
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12

- 13.

Trustees' remuneration and expenses . o

One or more Trustees has been paid remuneration or has received other benefits from an employment
with the Trust. The principal and other staff Trustees only receive remuneration in respect of services
they provide undertaking the roles of principal and staff members under their contracts of employment.
The value of Trustees' remuneration and other benefits was as follows:

- 2020 2019

: £000 £000

William Roberts (Chief Executive) Remuneration 130-135 115-120
Pension contributions paid 30-35 156-20

During the year ended 31 August 2020, expenses totalling £2,525 were reimbursed to 3 Trustees (2019 -
£3,098 to 3 Trustees) in relation to travel and subsistence.

Trustees' and Officers’ insurance

The Trust has opted into the Department of Education’s risk protection arrangement (RPA), an
alternative to insurance where UK government funds cover losses that arise. This scheme protects
Trustees and officers from claims arising from negligent acts, errors or omissions occurring whilst on
Trust business, and provides cover up to £10,000,000. It is not possible to guantify the Trustees and
officers indemnity element from the overall cost of the RPA scheme membership.
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14,

Tangible fixed assets

Cost or valuation
At 1 September 2019
Additions

At 31 August 2020
Depreciation

At 1 September 2019
Charge for the year

At 31 August 2020

Net book value

At 31 August 2020

At 31 August 2019

All additions to land and buildings relate to improvements to existing assets.

Leasehold Furniture

land and and Computer Motor
buildings equipment equipment vehicles Total
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000
83,038 605 1,511 23 85177
76 99 102 - 277
83,114 704 1,613 23 85,454
20,143 367 1,268 12 21,790
2,752 122 129 4 3,007
22,895 489 1,397 16 24,797
80,219 215 218 7 60,657
62,895 238 243 11 63,387

Leaseheld property is occupied under a 125 leases with South Gloucestershire Council, with the
exception of Lyde Green Primary School {net book value £7253,000) which is occupied under a
tenancy agreement while a 125 year lease is being finalised. The cost initially recognised is the fair
value of the leasehold property on transfer to the Trust, as advised to the Trustees by an independent
professional valuation. Subsequent improvements to property are capitalised at cost incurred.
Leasehold buildings are depreciated over the economic life as advised by an independent professional

valuation.

The value of land held by the Trust, included in leasehold fand and buildings was £19,726,000 (

£19,726,000).
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15. Debtors ) * 1

Due within one year
Trade debtors
Amounts owed by group undertakings
Other debtors

- Prepayments and accrued income
VAT recoverable

' 16. Current asset investments

Cash placed on short term deposit
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2020 2019
£000 £000
33 42
443 207
52 107
2,003 1,854
167 328
2,688 2,638
2020 2019
£000 £000
1,639 1,633
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17.

Creditors: Amounts falling due within one year

Trade creditors

Other taxation and social security
Other creditors

Accruals and deferred income

Included in creditors are the following amounts in respect of deferred income:

Deferred income at 1 September 2019
Resources deferred during the year
Amounts released from previous periods

2020 2019
£000 £000
. 505 1,215
386 370
460 348
571 636
1,922 2,569
2020 2019
£000 £000
292 250
309 292
(292) (250)
309 262

At the Statement of Financial Position date the Trust was holding funds received in advance of school

trips taking place in the 2020-21 academic year.
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18.

Statement of funds "
Balance at 1
September Transfers Gains/ Balance at 31
2019 Income Expenditure infout (Losses) August 2020
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000
Unrestricted funds
Capital expenditure from
unrestricted funds 360 - - {3) - 357
Other unrestricted funds 877 176 {37) 3 - 1,018
1,237 176 {37 - - 1,376
Restricted general
funds
General Annual Grant
{GAG) 109 22,609 (22,770) - - (62)
Pupil premium funding - 783 {783) - - -
SEN funding _ - 1,013 {1,013) - - -
School Fund 48 584 {452) - - 180
Other restricted 36 1,930 (1,912) - - 54
Pension reserve {13,536) - {(791) - 33 {14,294)
(13,343) . 26,919 (27,721) - 33 (14,112)
Restricted fixed asset
funds
DfE/ESFA capital grants 3,778 1,611 (589) - - 4,800
Other capital grants 295 40 {36) - - 299
Inherited capital funds 23 - {23) - - -
Inherited and gifted fixed
assefs 61,812 - (2,346) - - 59,466
Capital expenditure from
GAG 13 - {13) - - -
65,921 1,651 (3,007) - - 64,565
Total Restricted funds 52,578 28,570 {30,728) - 33 50,453
Total funds 53,815 (30,765) - 33 51,829

28,746
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18.

Statement of funds (continued)
The specific purpases for which the funds are to be applied are as follows:
Restricted general funds ¢

General annual grant (GAG)

The general annual grant (GAG) must be used for the normal running costs of the Trust's schools. It can
also be applied to capital expenditure. Under the funding agreement with the Secretary of State, the
Trust was not subject to a fimit on the amount of GAG that it could carry forward at 31 August 2020.

Pupil premium funding
Pupil premium funding must be used to address inequalities between children eligible for free school
meals and their peers.

SEN funding
SEN funding must be spent supporting pupils with statements of Education and Healthcare Plans.

School Fund
The School Fund holds contributions towards school trips and similar activities.

Pension reserve
The pension reserve holds the Trust's share of the Local Government Pension Scheme deficit.

Restricted fixed asset funds

The Fixed asset funds include a variety of funds including:

DfE/ESFA capital grants

Devalved capital grants can be used for capitai expenditure and repairs to enhance the fabric of school
buildings. The Trustees have allocated from restricted funds, £2,500,000 towards the combined Capital
plans for Marlwood and The Castle Schools and £1,104,418 towards localised school Asset Management
Plans.

Inherited capital funds
The Trust's schools received unspent capital funds from predecessor schoois. The Trust must respect
the original restriction on these funds and so they must be spent on capital projects.

Inherited and gifted fixed assets

The amount of inherited fixed assets represents the depreciated replacement cost of the predecessor
schools' land and buildings and the fair value of equipment, which was transferred to the Trust on
conversion or merger.

Unrestricted funds

Astro-turf pitch sinking fund
This is a designated fund created by the Trustees to comply with the requirements of the funders of the
Trust's astro-turf pitches. The fund is to be used for the repair and maintenance of the astro-turf pitches.

Capital expenditure from unrestricted funds

Some unrestricted funds have been applied for capital expenditure. The fund holds the book value of
these assets and will reduce as they are depreciated. Thls includes the Astro-turf pitch sinking fund which
is a designated fund as per previous note above.

Gther unrestricted funds
Unrestricted funds are available to be spent on any purpose within the Trust's charitable objects.
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18.

Statement of funds (continued) S
Total funds analysis by academy

Fund balances at 31 August 2020 were allocated as follows:

2020 2019

£000 £000

The Castle School . y 883 789
Charfield School S S 176 141
Downend School ) 135 57
Lyde Green Primary School 303 293
Mangotsfield School 1,369 921
Marlwooed School’ (1,148) (978)
Severn Beach Primary School 3 25
Castle School Education Trust ; {163) - 180
Total before fixed asset funds and pension reserve 1,558 1,430
Restricted fixed asset fund . 64,565 65,921

Pension reserve } (14,294) (13,538)
Total : 51,829 53,815
The following academy is carrying a net deficit on its portion of the funds as follows:

Deficit

£000

Marlwood School (1,148)

The deficit at Marlwood School is due to the reduction in number of students in recent years. This led to
a reduction in income, which occurred faster than cost restructuring actions that were implemented.

The deficit of £163k for the central Trust has been caused by the timing of staff restructures, severance
pay and new joining strengthening the Trust Leadership Team. Excess to budget has been matched by
savings to budget elsewhere across the Trust, i.e. finance staff were budgeted in the schools as
Business Managers but are accounted for in the Central trust area as Finance Managers.

£240k of accrued income in relation to capital grants is held centrally for the use of all schools.

The Trust is taking the following action to return the academy to surplus:

The Trust continues to implement reductions in staff costs, a review of contracts, sharing services with
other schools in the trust and amalgamation of the sixth form provision.
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18. Statement of funds (continued)
Total cost analysis by academy

Expenditure incurred by each academy during the year was as follows:

Teaching
and
educational Other Other costs

support support Educational excluding Total
staff costs  staff costs supplies depreciation 2020
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000
The Castle School 8,771 204 69 1,120 8,164
Charfield Schoal 606 40 5 167 818
Downend School 5,183 177 101 825 6,286
Lyde Green Primary School 1,181 46 34 224 1,485
Mangotsfield School 4,243 258 22 931 5,454
Mariwood School 1,984 77 26 636 2,723
Severn Beach Primary School 477 31 12 114 634
Castle School Education Trust (431) 466 1 2,126 2,162

Trust 20,014 1,299 270 6,143 27,726

Comparative information in respect of the preceding year is as follows:

Teaching
and :
educational Other Other costs
support support Educational excluding Total
staff costs  staff costs supplies depreciation 2019
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000
The Castle School 6,738 292 69 1,072 8,171
Charfield School . B16 38 5 178 837
Downend School 4,711 278 103 1,088 6,180
Lyde Green Primary School 875 45 45 275 1,240
Mangotsfield School 4264 283 4 1,226 5,777
Marlwood School 2,039 117 32 717 2,905
Severn Beach Primary School 414 3 10 123 578
Castle School Education Trust {553) 830 2 554 833
Trust 19,104 1,914 270 5,233 26,521
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18.

Statement of funds (continued)

Comparative information in respect of the preceding year is as follows:

Unrestricted funds

Astro-turf pitch sinking fund

Capital expenditure from.
unrestricted funds

Other unrestricted funds

Restricted general funds

General Annual Grant (GAG)
Pupil premium funding

SEN funding '
School Fund

Other restricted

Pension reserve

Restricted fixed asset funds
DfE/ESFA capital grants
Other capital grants

Inherited capital funds

tnherited and gifted fixed
assets

Capital expenditure from GAG

Total Restricted funds

To_tal funds

Balance at
1 Balance at
September Gains/ 31 August
2018 Income Expenditure {Losses)} 2019
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000
432 - - {185) 247
410 - (297) - 113
457 327 {92) 185 877
1,299 327 (389) - 1,237
hl 3.
- 22,404 (22,295) - 109
- 745 (745) - -
- 969 (969) - -
42 608 {602) - 48
45 955 {964) - 36
(8,022} - (852) {4,662} (13,536)
(7,935) 25,681 (26,427) {4,662) (13,343)
3,031 1,294 (547) - 3,778
- 295 - - 295
52 - (29) - 23
64,214 - (2,402) - 61,812
28 - {15) - 13
67,325 1,589 {2,993) - 65,921
59,380 27,270 {29,420) {4,662) 52,578
60,689 27,597 (29,809) (4,682) 53,815

A —  ————— ———— ——————— A b




Castle School Education Trust
{A Company Limited by Guarantee)

Notes to the Financial Statements
For the Year Ended 31 August 2020

19.

Analysis of net assets between funds

Analysis of net assets between funds - current period -

Restricted
Unrestricted Restricted fixed asset Total
funds funds funds funds
2020 2020 2020 2020
£000 £000 £000 £000
Tangible fixed assets 87 - 60,570 60,657
Current assets 1,288 2,104 3,995 7,387
Creditors due within one year - (1,922) - {1,922)
Provisions for liabilities and charges - (14,294) - (14,294)
Difference 1 - - {1}
Total 1,376 (14,112) 64,565 51,829
Analysis of net assets between funds - prior period
Restricted
Unrestricted Restricted fixed asset Total
funds funds funds funds
2019 2019 2019 2019
£000 £000 £000 £000
Tangible fixed assets ' 113 - 63,274 63,387
Current assets 1,124 2,723 2,686 6,533
Creditors due within one year . - {2,530) (39) {2,569)
Provisions for liabilities and charges - {13,536) - (13,536)
Total 1,237 (13,343) 65,921 53,815
—————
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26.

21,

22

Reconciliation of net expenditure to net cash flow from operating activities

2020 2019
£000 £000
Net expenditure for the period (as per Statement of Financial Activities) {2,019) (2,212)
Adjustments for:
Depreciation 3,007 3,122
Capital grants from DfE and other capital income {1,651} {1,589)
Interest receivable {9} (12)
Defined benefit pension scheme cost less contributions payable 558 641
Defined benefit pension scheme finance cost 233 211
increase in debtors R (149) (383)
(Decrease)/increase in creditors . . (408) 479
{ 0ss on disposal - 168
Net cash (used in)/provided by operating activities - - (438) - - 425
Cash flows from investing activities
‘ 2020 2019
. £000 £000
Dividends, interest and rents from investments ‘ S : 9 12
Purchase of tangible fixed assets (277) (1,043}
Capital grants from DfE 1,411 370
Net cash provided by/(used in) investing activities 1,143 {661)
Analysis of cash and cash equivalents
2020 2019
. £000 £000
Cash at bank and in hand : T 3,061 2,362
Notice deposits (less than 3 months) ‘ . 1,639 1,633
3,995

Total cash and cash equivalents . " . 4,700
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23.

24,

25,

26.

Analysis of changes in net debt

At1 At 31

September August

2019 Cash flows 2020

£000 £000 £000

Cash at bank and in hand 2,362 699 3,061
Cash equivalents 1,633 6 1,639

3,995 705 4,700

Contingent liabilities

There were no contingent liabilities in the current or the previous year.

Capital commitments

There were no material capital commitments at the current or previous year end.

Pension commitments

The Trust's employees belong to two principal pension schemes: the Teachers' Pension Scheme
England and Wales (TPS) for academic and related staff, and the Local Government Pension Scheme
(LGPS) for non-teaching staff, which is managed by Avon Pension Fund. Both are multi-employer
defined benefit schemes.

The latest actuarial valuation of the TPS related to the period ended 31 March 2016, published in 2018
and of the LGPS 31 March 2019.

Contributions amounting to £334,000 were payable to the schemes at 31 August 2020 (2019 -
£316,000) and are included within creditors.

Teachers’ Pension Scheme

The Teachers' Pension Scheme (TPS) is a statutory, contributory, defined benefit scheme, governed by
the Teachers' Pension Scheme Regulations 2014. Membership is automatic for full-time teachers in
academies. All teachers have the option to opt-out of the TPS following enrolment.

The TPS is an unfunded scheme to which both the member and employer makes contributions, as a

percentage of salary - these contributions are credited to the Exchequer. Retirement and other pension
benefits are paid by public funds provided by Parliament,
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26.

Pension commitments (continued)
Valuation of the Teachers' Pension Scheme

The Government Actuary, using normal actuarial principles, conducts a formal actuarial review of the
TPS in accordance with the Public Service Pensions (Valuations and Employer Cost Cap) Directions
2014 published by HM Treasury every 4 years. The aim of the review is to specify the level of future
contributions. Actuarial scheme valuations are dependent on assumptions about the value of future
costs, design of benefits and many other facters. The latest actuarial valuation of the TPS was carried
out as at 31 March 2016. The valuation report was published by the Department for Education on 5
March 2018. The key elements of the valuation and subsequent consultation are:

. employer contribution rates set at 23.68% of pensionable pay (including a 0.08% administration
levy)
o total scheme liabilities (pensions currently in payment and the estimated cost of future benefits) for

service to the effective date of £218,100 million and notional assets (estimated future
contributions together with the notional investments held at the valuation date) of £196,100 million,
giving a notional past service deficit of £22,000 million

. the SCAPE rate, set by HMT, is used to determine the notional investment return. The current
SCAPE rate is 2.4% above the rate of CPl, assumed real rate of return is 2.4% in excess of prices
and 2% in excess of eamnings. The rate of real earnings growth is assumed to be 2.2%. The
assumed nominal rate of return including earnings growth is 4.45%.

The next valuation result is due to be implementéd from 1 April 2023.
The employer's pension costs paid to TPS in the year amounted to £2 878,000 (2018 - £1,897,000).

A copy of the valuation report and supporting documentation is on the Teachers' Pensions website
(https./fwww.teacherspensions.co.uk/news/employers/2019/04/teachers-pensions-valuation-report.aspx).

Under the definitions set out in FRS 102, the TPS is an unfunded multi-employer pension scheme. The -
Trust has accounted for its contributions to the scheme as if it were a defined contribution scheme. The
Trust has set out above the information available on the scheme.

Local Government Pension Scheme

The LGPS is a funded defined benefit pension scheme, with the assets held in separate trustee-
administered funds. The total contribution made for the year ended 31 August 2020 was £1,349,000
(2019 - £1,150,000), of which employer's contributions totalled £1,112,000 (2019 - £924,000) and
employees' contributions totalled £ 237,000 (2019 - £226,000). The agreed contribution rates for future
years are 16.3% - 20.6% per cent for employers and 5.5% - 12.5% per cent for employees.

Parliament has agreed, at the request of the Secretary of State for Education, to a guarantee that, in the
event of academy closure, outstanding Local Government Pension Scheme liabilities would be met by
the Department for Education. The guarantee came into force on 18 July 2013.

The LGPS scheme currently shows a deficit of £14,294,000 (2019: £13,356,000). The Trust is making
additional lump sum contributions of £25,000 (2019: £25,000} per month to reduce the deficit. The
number of years where additional contributions are payable varies by academy, but the period is
between 16 and 20 years.
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26.

Pension commitments (continued)

Principal actuarial assumptions

2020

%

Rate of increase in salaries 3.9
Rate of increase for pensions in payment/inflation 25
Discount rate for scheme liabilities 1.8
Inflation assumption (CPI) 24

2019
%

3.6
22
1.8
2.1

The current mortality assumptions include sufficient allowance for future improvements in mortality
rates. The assumed life expectations on retirement age 65 are:

Retiring today
Males

Females

Retiring in 20 years
Males

Females

Sensitivity analysis

Discount rate +0.1%

Mortality assumption - 1 year increase
CPl rate +0.1%

~ Pay growth +0.1% per annum

Share of scheme assets

2020 2019
Years Years
23.2 23.7
25.3 26.2
24.7 26.3
27.3 29
2020 2019
£000 £000
(540} {577)
550 493
821 590
76 138
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26,

Pension commitments (continued)

The Trust's share of the assets in the scheme was:

2020 2019

£000 £000
Equities 6,307 6,761
Government bonds 1,027 -
Other bonds 385 1,575
Property 1,256 795
Cash and other liquid assets 428 173
Other 4,865 5,143
Total market value of assets 14,268 14,447
The actual return on scheme assets was £627,000 (2019 - £902,000).
The amounts recognised in the Statement of Financial Activities are as follows: "

. 2020 2019

£000 £000
Current service cost 1,595 1,168
Past service cost 52 379
Interest cost 233 211
Administrative expenses 23 18
Total amount recognised in the Statement of Financial Activities 1,903 1,776
Changes in the present value of the defined benefit obligations were as follows:

2020 2019

£000 £000
At 1 September " 27983 20714
Current service cost 1,595 1,168
Past service cost 52 379
Interest cost 502 579
Employee contributions 237 226
Benefits paid (342) {279)
Actuarial loss/(gain) {1,465) 5,196
At 31 August 28,562 27,983
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26,

27.

28,

29,

Pension commitments {continued)

Changes in the fair value of the Trust's share of scheme assets were as follows:

2020 2019

£000 £000
At 1 September 14,447 12,692
Expected return on plan assets {1,432) 534
interest income 269 368
Employee contributions 237 226
Benefits paid (342) (279)
Employer contributions 1,112 924
Administrative expenses {23} {18)
At 31 August 14,268 14,447

As at the 31 August 2020, the Trust holds a net deficit position of £14,294,000 (2019: £13,536,000).

Operating lease commitments

At 31 August 2020 the Trust had commitments to make future minimum lease payments under non-

cancellable operating leases as follows:

2020 2019

£000 £000

Not later than 1 year 26 35
Later than 1 year and not later than 5 years : ' 33 45
59 80

Guarantees, letters of comfort and indemnities

There were no guarantees, letters of comfort or indemnities provided by the Trust during the current or

previous year.

Members' liability

Each member of the Trust undertakes to contribute to the assets of the company in the event of it being
wound up while he/she is a member, or within one year after he/she ceases to be a member, such
amount as may be required, not exceeding £10 for the debts and liabilities contracted before hefshe

ceases to be a member.
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20.

3.

Related party transactions

Owing to the nature of the Trust and the composition of the Board of Trustees being drawn from local
public and private sector organisations, transactions may take place with organisations in which the
Trustees have an interest. All transactions involving such organisations are conducted in accordance
with the requirements of the Academies Financial Handbook, including notifying the ESFA of all
transactions made on or after 1 April 2019 and obtaining their approval where required, and with the
Trust's financial regulations and normal procurement procedures relating to connected and related party
transactions.

The Trust has recharged staff and other costs of £238,725 (2018: £225,737) to its trading subsidiary,
Premium Partners Limited.

These recharges are based on actual costs incurred by the Trust with no margin added, so are not
considered to be on an arm’s length basis.

The Trust used no restricted funds to assist the subsidiary in 2020 (2019: £10,000 to subsidise its
provision of sports coaching to schools).

Premium Partners Limited also recharged the Trust £29,748 (2019: £21,000) in relation to IT consultancy
and £4,250 (2019: £2,000) for sperts coaching.

Financial regulations and procurement procedures are not applicable. At the year end, the Trust was due
£442 000 (2019: £207,000) from the subsidiary, repayable on demand.

Principal subsidiaries

The following was a subsidiary of the Trust:

Name Company Registered office or principal
number place of business Principal activity
Premium Partners Limited 029289197 The Partnership Centre The provision of
Mariwood School Site, sports coaching and
Vattingstone Lane, {T consultancy to
Alverston schools in South
England Gloucestershire.
BS35 3LA

The financial results of the subsidiary for the year were:

Name income Expenditure Profit for the Net assets
year
£000 £000 £000 £000
Premium Partners Limited 273 (255) 18 26

The subsidiary is not consolidated into the financial statements of the Trust on the basis that it is not
material to giving a true and fair view in the context of the group.
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